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In the midst of industry and competitive challenges, Applebee’s is stay-

ing true to what we do — building momentum with a singular focus on

the successful Applebee’s brand and optimizing the proven growth

strategies we have in place.

Staying True

To OQur Shareholders:

How You Achieve Growth Is as Important
as the Growth Itself

Fiscal 2004 was a successful year for Applebee’s on
many fronts, although the year ended on a somewhat
softer note with a slowdown in sales throughout the
casual dining industry. As a result, we were disap-
pointed to fall short of the lofty goals we had set for
ourselves. That said, we expanded our market share
with strong growth in system-wide sales, comparable
sales and guest traffic by focusing on improving our
operations and optimizing our key strategies.

Staying true to our vision, to our guiding princi-
ples and to our strategies, we continued to deliver
strong results.

Staying True to
QOur Track Record of

Delivering Consistent Results

Financial measures reflect our solid performance last
year in spite of a tough business climate. Total
system-wide sales for Applebee’s International,
including both company and franchise restaurant

sales, rose 10.7 percent for the fiscal year ended
December 26, 2004. Total sales for company restau-
rants grew 12.6 percent to $976.8 million for the
year, with total operating revenues increasing
12.3 percent to $1.1 billion.

The company’s net earnings for fiscal 2004
were a record $110.9 million, or $1.33 per diluted
share. This represents an increase in
diluted earnings per share of 21
percent as compared to fiscal 2003
earnings of $1.10 per diluted share,
which included an impairment charge
of approximately 6 cents per share.
Over the past
compounded annual growth
rate in earnings per share

five years, our

exceeds 18 percent.
Return on equity, already
among the highest in the
industry, exceeded 23
percent for the year.
Last year, our com-
parable sales and traffic

LLOYD L. HILL
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
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STAYING TRUE TO THE SOUND, PROVEN STRATEGIES WE

HAVE IN PLACE, APPLEBEE’S SEEKS CONTINUED

MOMENTUM AND GROWTH BY ELEVATING OUR PER-
FORMANCE WITH ICICHtIGSS execution.

Shown right: Our overarching, long-term growth strategies are captured in the strategic wheel, which
defines our promise to our guests and our associates, and our goals to help us deliver on that promise.
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Staying True

growth again substantially exceeded the casual dining
industry average as measured by Knapp-Track.™
System-wide comparable sales, which compare
restaurants open for at least 18 months, rose 4.8
percent in 2004 — three percentage points greater
than the average for the rest of the industry and our
highest annual rate of growth since 1993. Through
year-end, we have achieved 26 consec-

which was used to fund $105 million of capital
expenditures and the $14 million acquisition of 10

franchise restaurants, as well as stock repurchases.
We repurchased nearly 4 million shares of our
common stock during fiscal 2004 at an average price
of $24.97 for an aggregate cost of $99.7 million.
Over the last seven years, we have utilized our
growing cash flow and strong balance

utive quarters, or six and a half years, of
comparable sales growth. Comparable
sales at franchised restaurants
increased 5.2 percent, while company
restaurants posted comparable sales
gains of 3.8 percent in 2004,

Guest traffic is another key barome-
ter of success in casual dining. Traffic
growth measures reach and frequency,
or simply put, attracting more guests,
more often. Guest traffic in our
company restaurants increased 2.0 to
2.5 percent in 2004 as we also

$2,151
$2,201
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SYSTEM-WIDE
(in thousands)

$2,269
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sheet to repurchase 38 million shares
totaling $416.1 million at an average
cost of less than $11 per share.
During the year, our Board of
Directors authorized additional stock
repurchases of up to $150 million
beginning in 2005 and approved a
written plan for repurchases of
common stock in the open market in
accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. This
plan will allow us to repurchase shares
during periods when we could not be

— 52,462

— — 52,351
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outpaced the industry average on this
critical measure.

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
ANNUAL UNIT SALES

in the marketplace because of internal
blackout periods.

Applebee’s strong balance sheet
and substantial free cash flow provide the foundation
and flexibility for increased company development,
potential franchise acquisitions and continued stock
repurchases. Our year-end debt to capitalization
ratio was less than 7 percent, providing substantial
borrowing capacity for our growth agenda. Cash
flow from operations grew to $191 million in 2004,

In May 2004, for the third time in
four years, the company declared a three-for-two
stock split in the form of a 50 percent stock dividend.
In December, we declared an annual dividend of
6 cents per share, a 29 percent increase over the prior
year’s dividend of 5 cents per share (adjusted for
the stock split), and the 15th consecutive annual
dividend paid by the company.

2004 ANNUAL REPORT & FOrM T0-K
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OUR BELIEF IN THE UNTAPPED POTENTIAL OF THE
APPLEBEE’S CONCEPT IS STRONGER THAN EVER WITH
THE DOMESTIC DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL NOW ESTI-

MATED TO BE AT LEasT 3,000 restaurants.

Shown left: Applebee’s development momentum continues with at least 125 new restaurants expected
to open in 2005, which will mark the 13th consecutive year of opening at least 100 units.

Staying True

Staying True to

Our Growth Strategies

As we pursue continuing growth and maintaining our
momentum, we are focused on two interrelated goals:
superior restaurant execution and noticeably better
people. We have sound, proven strategies in place, and
we plan to stay the course — elevating our performance
with the right people and relentless execution of our
long-term strategies which are designed to clearly
differentiate Applebee’s, win customer preference
and broaden the gap versus our competitors.

Strategic Wheel

Achieving consistent results requires that we stay
true to the sound strategies we have in place.
First introduced in 2001 and since enhanced, our
overarching strategies are captured in our strategic
wheel —~ six focused strategies that are backed by
specific initiatives and actions, and directed toward
aggressive goals. Best Menu Choice, Best Service and
Best Value represent our promise to our guests;
Reduce Variability, Leverage Scale and Increase Unit
Advantage represent the keys to helping us deliver on
that promise.

Favorable Industry Trends

Current industry and demographic trends support
our expectations for continued, steady growth.
According to the National Restaurant Association,

industry sales will experience the 14th consecutive
vear of real growth in 2005. Total industry sales are
expected to increase 4.9 percent and reach a record
$476 billion, as American consumers spend nearly
47 percent of their food dollar away from home.

Through 2008, the casual dining category is
expected to grow 5.7 percent annually, with the
“varied menu” segment that includes Applebee’s
growing at a healthy 6.0 percent.

Continued Unit Growth

At year-end, the Applebee’s system had grown to
1,671 restaurants in 49 states and 12 foreign coun-
tries. Last year, we opened 109 restaurants, including
32 company and 77 franchised units — marking the
12th consecutive year in which we opened at least
100 new units. This track record of development,
unprecedented in the casual dining industry, extends
from 250 restaurants at the end of 1992 to
approaching 1,700 currently. We expect to keep this
record going with at least 125 new restaurants
planned for 2003, including a minimum of 40
company units and 83 franchise units.

Based on our continued success in penetrating
markets of various sizes, overall category growth and
future consumer demand, we now believe the domes-
tic potential of the Applebee’s system to be at least
3,000 restaurants — a 30 percent increase over the
potential we believed existed just a couple of years ago.

In addition, we believe there is the long-term
potential for at least 1,000 restaurants internationally.
At year-end, we had 58 restaurants operating

Page 4
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Applebee’s popular Carside To
Go™ initiative continues to win
fans and has emerged as the

fastest-growing area of our husiness,

Many guests find Applebee’s is a

great place to enjoy an alcoholic

h their meal or at the
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WITH CONSISTENT RESULTS DRIVEN BY OUR UNIQUE
BUSINESS MODEL, APPLEBEE’S HAS ACHIEVED SALES

AND EARNINGS INCREASES FOR 1 § consecutive

YC€ArS sINCE BECOMING A PUBLIC COMPANY IN 1989.

Shown left: Our unwavering dedication ro great food and fun times appeals to guests of every age
and helps drive consistent growth year after year.

Staying True

outside of the United States, concentrated in Canada,
Latin America and the Mediterranean/Middle East.

Franchise Business Model

Qur business model is unique in casual dining,
relying on a predominant balance of franchise
operations. At year-end, 48 domestic franchise
groups operated a total of 1,189 restaurants,
averaging 25 units per group. Additionally, 22
international franchise groups were operating
58 restaurants outside of the United States. This
franchise strategy gives Applebee’s an annuity stream
of highly profitable franchise income, a base
for rapid system expansion and heightened brand
awareness, and significant buying power and
economies of scale.

Our model focuses on multi-unit operators
with similar values and financial strength. Five
Applebee’s franchisees rank among the top 25
restaurant franchisees in the country according to
Restaurant Finance Monitor 200, a ranking based on
annual revenues.

Franchise Acquisitions

In conjunction with our aggressive development
plans, we continually evaluate and manage our mix
of company and franchise restaurants throughout the
system. Using our strong balance sheet and free cash
flow, we continue to acquire franchise operations

that offer growth potential together with geographic
and operational synergies. At year-end, company-
owned operations represented 25 percent of our
system, and we anticipate that this mix could shift to
as much as one-third company and two-thirds fran-
chised as we acquire additional operations over the
next three to five years.

In 2004, we completed the acquisition of 10
Applebee’s restaurants in southern California for
$13.8 million. While addressing our ongoing growth
strategy, this acquisition also supports our long-term
effort to more aggressively penetrate the southern
California market using a combination of both com-
pany and franchise resources.

Leveraging Our Size and Scale

Growth is about more than just getting bigger, it’s
about getting better. For us, that translates into exe-
cuting consistently at a high level and using our
industry-leading scale to build greater consumer
awareness and to drive increased sales and repeat visits.

Measured by system-wide sales, Applebee’s ranks
as the ninth largest restaurant chain in America,
according to Nation’s Restaurant News. Within the
casual dining segment, we hold the No. 1 position in
number of units, sales and market share. Within the
full-service, varied menu segment, we continue to
achieve steady gains in market share, climbing from
10.0 percent in 2000 to 11.2 percent at year-end
2003 according to the most recent data available

Page 6
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OUR WEIGHT WATCHERS® MENU, COMBINING HEALTHIER

CHOICES WITH THE ROBUST FLAVOR GUESTS HAVE COME

TO EXPECT FROM APPLEBEE’S, IS bI' oadening

our appeal TO NEW CUSTOMERS.

Shown right: The flavor-packed Tango Chicken Sandwich is among the latest additions to our

Weight Watchers® menu line-up of appetizers, entrees and desserts.

Staying True

from Technomic. As the largest brand in casual din-
ing, we have a unique opportunity to leverage our
brand, system size and scale to fuel future growth.

Increased National Advertising

The casual dining category has entered an era of big
brands capable of using national

our neighborhood branding messages. Targeted
programming will deliver the right message to
the right audience through the right medium - using
print, radio and television, including network, cable
or syndication.

Singular Focus on One Brand

media to boost consumer awareness
and preference and to gain market
share. Recognizing this opportunity,
beginning in 2005 we are shifting our
emphasis to greater levels of national
versus local advertising. In support of
this strategy, we are increasing the
required contribution to the national
advertising fund by 0.5 percent to
2.75 percent of sales for both company
and franchise restaurants. At the same
time, the amount required to be spent
locally will decrease by 0.5 percent to

1,286
1,392

— -

[e]0)
oI

+ 11496
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Qur momentum and marketplace suc-
cess in recent years is a direct result of
our singular focus on one brand. Based
on our belief in the untapped potential
of the Applebee’s brand, we remain
convinced and more confident than
ever that we do not need another brand
to meet our growth targets over the
next three to five years. Qur review
of numerous transactions the
restaurant industry that
acquisitions of other concepts have not
created much value for shareholders,

Q- 1,585
- 1,671

n
indicates

[\ <+
(=) o]

1.0 percent of sales. For 2005, we
expect the system-wide marketing

SYSTEM-WIDE NUMBER
OF RESTAURANTS

and in many cases, have eroded value
and diverted management’s attention

spend to approximate $165 million,
with $121 million directed to national advertising
and $44 million toward local marketing efforts.

The resulting increase of more than 30 percent in
our national advertising budget will enable us to
convey sustained multiple messages to our guests,
including our branded campaign events, Carside To
Go™, our partnership with Weight Watchers® and

from their core business.

While we have no interest in a big acquisition, we
will remain opportunistic — but extremely selective —
about making a potential acquisition. We are deter-
mined to make sure our strategy of maximizing the
core Applebee’s business is not compromised by any
new growth initiative.

2004 ANNUAL REPORT & FORM ro-K
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TECHNOLOGY INNOVATION GIVES APPLEBEE’S A
competitive advantage IN THE
MARKETPLACE BY DIFFERENTIATING OUR BRAND

AND RESTAURANTS WITH CONSUMERS.

Shown left: A wireless credit card settlement device is enhancing the overall convenience of our
Carside To Go™ program by enabling servers to handle transactions right at the vehicle.

Staying True

Staying True to
QOur Commitment

to Innovate

Applebee’s deep commitment to innovation extends
from our concept, menu and

of our system as of year-end. This innovation has
proved to be an invaluable kitchen management tool
that translates into improved revenue from increased
guest satisfaction and reduced table turn times.

Carside To Go™

Qur Carside To Go Initiative continues

promotions geared to gaining a loyal
customer base, to innovative internal
systems and practices designed to save
money and increase effectiveness.

5.0%

Focus on Technology

Technology innovation is an integral
ingredient of our business strategy and
critical to restaurant performance and
financial improvement. Qur internal
information technology strategy is
centered on a comprehensive suite of

o2

(percent of company sales)

7.1%

—

[l
o

to gain momentum in the marketplace,
with the percentage of company sales
rising to 9.3 percent for the year, up
from 7.1 percent in 2003. Throughout
2004, our franchisees continued to
implement the program, and we expect
Carside To Go to be a continued
driver of sales and traffic growth as we
leverage our marketing muscle behind
this effort with the introduction of
national advertising in 2005. By
year-end, we had completed the
conversion to Carside To Go at nearly

® 9.3%

-3
[s]

integrated products designed
enhance the operational performance

to

CARSIDE TO GO™ SALES

1,400 restaurants and completed

implementation for substantially all of

and execution in our restaurants, to
improve the overall guest experience and to drive
tangible financial benefits.

Kitchen Display System

After being fully implemented in our company
restaurants during 2003, our Kitchen Display System
{KDS) had been installed in more than three-fourths

the system in the first quarter of 2005.

Going forward, we are continuing to focus on
execution. In addition, we will use technology
innovation as a competitive advantage to clearly
differentiate Applebee’s with consumers — such as
our new wireless credit card settlement device in
conjunction with our Carside To Go initiative. This
handheld electronic device enhances the overall
convenience of curbside pickup by enabling servers

Page 8
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TOn At A]ﬁ;ﬁ]ebee’s is perhaps

" “most apparent in our palate-pleasing
menu that features flavorful choices
to match every taste and appetite.

As a result of our emphasis on
continually upgrading Applebee’s
core menu for greater variety and
flavor, quality and portion size,

R UNTI-

more than 85 percent of the menu st

is new or improved over the past

tRem coming bac




REACHING MILLIONS OF LOYAL, LONG-TIME GUESTS
AND ATTRACTING NEW, FIRST-TIME VISITORS, WE USE A
broad AXTaY OF PRINT, BROADCAST AND

ELECTRONIC MEDIA TO BUILD THE APPLEBEE’S BRAND.

Shown left: Qur newly redesigned website enables visitors to view our menu, locate the nearest
restaurant, order gift cards online, learn all about Carside To Go™ and much more.

Staying True

to handle credit card payments at the vehicle without
going back inside. Once current testing in approxi-
mately 160 company restaurants is completed, we
have the capacity to roll out the device to over 400
units per month.

In our high-volume Carside To Go units, we also
are adding an incremental kitchen monitor so that
Carside To Go orders are not confused

markets across the country and launched in our
restaurants nationwide in May 2004. Our Weight
Watchers® menu of 10 appetizer, entree and dessert
selections lists calories, fat and fiber grams, as well as
Weight Watchers POINTS® values. With three out of
four Americans concerned about eating right, we have
found the new menu items as popular with

non-Weight Watchers guests as with

with dine-in orders.

Continually Evolving Menu Choices

1.7%
2.9%

Together with our other brand attrib-
utes, the appeal of Applebee’s centers
on food. Our focus is to continually
upgrade our corz menu for improved
variety, flavor, quality and portion size.
As a result of this emphasis, more than
85 percent of our menu is new or
improved over the last three years.

As a testament to this, Kurt

3.2%

o2

Weight Watchers members.

Extending our commitment to
healthy eating choices and meeting
parents’ desire for health-conscious
food options for children, we expanded
our kids menu in June 2004. The new

== 41.8%

—— 4.1%

items include two main courses — a
grilled chicken sandwich and pasta
with marinara sauce, and three side
dishes — carrots and celery, steamed
broccoli and applesauce.

S Promotions

Hankins, senior vice president of menu
development and innovation, was

SYSTEM-WIDE COMPARABLE
SALES GROWTH

Compelling promotional campaigns

selected to receive the MenuMasters
Chef/Innovator Award in 2005 from Nation’s
Restaurant News.

In mid-2003, Applebee’s made a commitment to
improve our healthy offerings by partnering with the
universally recognized, premier brand in weight-loss
management — Weight Watchers International, Inc.
As a result, we developed more healthful alternative
menu choices that were extensively tested in select

throughout the year helped build
consumer awareness, guest traffic and sales. Our
branded campaign events featured signature promo-
tional news that addressed both the variety seeker
and the value seeker — Three Course Combos, Steak
& Shrimp Double Features, Honey BBQ Baby Back
Ribs, Fresh Garden Classics, All You Can Eat
Riblets, Skillet Sensations and Steak Stampede.

Page 10
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AppLeBEE’s vIsIONn TO BE America’s Favorite
Neighbor® COMES ALIVE IN OUR RESTAURANTS

WITH A WELCOMING, INCLUSIVE ATMOSPHERE THAT

APPEALS TO ALL AGES AND DEMOGRAPHICS.

Shown right: Every Applebee’s restaurant features a Neighborhood Wall that celebrates local life,
highlighting hometown heroes and history, area schools and police and fire departments.

Staying True

Continually Refreshing the Brand

To attract more guests and increase the frequency
of visits, we are continually refining the Applebee’s
concept to keep it fresh and appealing — from the
look of our restaurants to our menu offerings and
promotions, in turn strengthening our franchise
model and elevating our guests’ satisfaction.

The Applebee’s concept, originated in 1980,
features a comfortable, neighborhood atmosphere
that appeals to a broad demographic range. In late
2003, we unveiled our new Applebee’s restaurant
prototype featuring an array of interior and exterior
enhancements. This contemporary new look is being
integrated into both new store construction and
remodels throughout the system.

Staying True to

Our Culture

At Applebee’s, we have created a unique culture that
truly values people at all levels of the organization,
that engages their energies and enthusiasm, and that
encourages their growth and development. Working
together, we are intent on building a great company
that becomes part of the American culture.

Strengthened Leadership Team

In recent years, we have been relentless in our
y s
pursuit of the most disciplined, service-oriented and

results-driven professionals in our industry. With key
leadership appointments in 2004, Applebee’s today is
rich with internal talent and depth - bench strength
that allows us to promote internally for key leader-
ship positions. In conjunction with our core component
of noticeably better people, we remain focused on
developing our associates and producing great lead-
ers to achieve industry-leading results.

Our strong and skilled senior executive team, with
proven capabilities across diverse disciplines, is
sharply focused on executing our strategies and
extending our industry leadership. This leadership
team consists of Dave Goebel, Steve Lumpkin, John
Cywinski, Lou Kaucic and myself.

Dave Goebel, who most recently served as executive
vice president and chief operating officer, was named
president of the company effective January 1, 2005,
and continues to serve as chief operating officer.

During the year, Steve Lumpkin, executive vice
president, chief financial officer and treasurer,
assumed responsibility for international development
and operations in addition to all finance functions,
information technology, legal and investor relations.
He also was elected to the Board of Directors in 2004.

John Cywinski was promoted to executive
vice president and chief marketing officer at the
beginning of the year with responsibility for the
company’s advertising, marketing, brand initiatives,
and menu development and innovation.

Lou Kaucic, executive vice president and chief
people officer, continues to lead our human resources
effort, including employment, compensation and

2004 ANNUAL REPORT & FORM 1o-K
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ve domestic develop-
ment goal will require more than
5,000 new managers in our
restaurants. We have developed
industry-leading processes and
programs to both attract capable
individuals to our system and to

identity exceptional associates and

groom them into leaders.




ACHIEVING OUR LONG-TERM GROWTH STRATEGIES
DEMANDS notlceably better people, AND OUR
CAREFULLY CREATED CULTURE ENGAGES OUR ASSOCIATES’

ENERGIES AND ENCOURAGES THEIR DEVELOPMENT.

Shown right: Our successful people approach begins with selecting individuals with a passion for

service, and then treating them as people first and as employees second.

Staying True

benefits, training and performance management, and
organizational and executive development.

In addition to this strong leadership team, our
Board of Directors was strengthened in May with the
election of Michael A. Volkema, chairman of the
board of Herman Miller, Inc.

Our culture and values set us apart from most
companies. We are extremely proud of the corporate
governance rating we received in May from
Institutional Shareholder Services. Applebee’s out-
performed 96 percent of the companies in the S&P
400 and 99 percent of the companies in the Hotels,
Restaurants & Leisure group.

Key Management Appointments

Key additions to and advancements among our offi-
cer group further strengthen our management team
and provide a foundation for long-term leadership.

Carin Stutz, who most recently served as senior
vice president of company operations, was promoted
to executive vice president of operations effective
January 1, 2005, overseeing all U.S. company and
franchise restaurants.

Rohan St. George joined the company as
president of the International Division in November,
and will lead our efforts to expand our brand
presence around the world.

Mike Czinege joined the company in April in the
newly created position of senior vice president and chief
information officer, and Miguel Fernandez was pro-
moted to senior vice president of company operations

effective January 1, 2005. Carol DiRaimo was pro-
moted to vice president of investor relations last
February, and effective January 1, 2005, Tom Finocchiaro
was promoted to vice president of operations excellence.

Noticeably Better People

At Applebee’s, we recognize that achieving our goals
and delivering on our strategies require superior
execution. The need for exceptional people will
become even more vital in the near future as Baby
Boomers begin to retire, leaving a gaping hole in the
workforce. A shortage of 1.5 million restaurant
workers in the near future, projected by the National
Restaurant Association, may provide a significant
challenge to our plans for system growth.

To develop 3,000 domestic restaurants, over
1,300 more than today, we will need nearly 100,000
more associates, including more than 5,000 new
managers. Near-term and long-term, we need to
attract and retain more — and better — associates who
are fully engaged and committed to superior execution.

People Philosophy

Noticeably better people demand a noticeably
better people philosophy and personnel systems.
Our formula for people success begins with a
balanced, seemingly contradictory, philosophy - a
performance-driven culture geared to results in
which we treat our associates as people first and as
employees second.

2004 ANNUAL REPORT & FORM 10-K
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WITH THREE-FOURTHS OF AMERICANS TODAY
CONCERNED ABOUT EATING RIGHT, OUR PIONEERING
COLLABORATION WITH WEIGHT WATCHERS® IS GIVING

OUR GUESTS healthful IMENU ALTERNATIVES.

Shown left: Dusted with powdered sugar and drizzled with raspberry sauce, the Weight Watchers®
Chocolate Raspberry Layer Cake can be described as a tour de scrumptious.

Staying True

Applebee’s has developed one of the industry’s
most creative selection, orientation, training and
retention processes. Our efforts to reduce turnover in
an industry marked by heavy turnover are delivering
results — with turnover among hourly employees
dropping from 146 percent in 2000 to 84 percent at
the end of 2004, while turnover among general
managers fell from 20 percent to 10

our guests’ experiences against our casual dining
competitors. For 2004, we led our grill and bar com-
petitors on all 19 measures and led our casual dining
competitors on 9 of 19 measures, with our strongest
results on food, service, value and intent to visit.

Neighbborbood Positioning

percent over the same period. These i illions) Qur mission and our intention is to
efforts utilized a process focused on become part of the American culture —
retaining our top performers. @ 0 H @ or what has been termed the “third
At the very heart of our culture is an ;{r’ é? ;E’; 3 § place” following work and home. We
approach to people centered around P are committed to making the concept
BIG Fun TRIP, an acronym that sum- of neighborhood come alive in our
marizes our values and guiding principles restaurants — creating a social oasis for
— Balance, Innovarion, Guest-driven, our guests and reinforcing our vision
Fun, Teamwork, Results-driven, l # ’ to become both America’s and eventu-
Integrity and Passion for service. ally the world’s favorite neighbor.
| Our neighborhood appeal clearly
Service addresses demographic trends. Today’s
- g 3 8§ & 3 lifestyles demand greater convenience
We use a number of measures to gauge in our time-starved world, and cook-
our guests’ experience and identify STOCK REPURCHASES ing increasingly is becoming a lost art.

areas for improvement. Based on our
dine-in customer service index, or CS], that gathered
input from over half a million guests last year, our
overall satisfaction rating exceeded 50 percent for
the first time — meaning that over half of our guests
responded with the top rating of “extremely satisfied”
with their dining experience on a seven-point scale.
We also conduct over 1,000 telephone interviews
monthly to qualitatively and quantitatively measure

As a result, people are seeking a substi-
tute for the family dinner table, and Applebee’s is
right there in the neighborhood to answer this need.

Reflecting our connection with neighborhood,
each Applebee’s restaurant celebrates its local
neighborhood by displaying photos and memorabilia
highlighting hometown heroes and history, area
schools, local police and fire departments.

Page 14
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STAYING TRUE TO THE SPIRIT OF APPLEBEE’S, WE ARE

WORKING TOGETHER TO CREATE AN AMERICAN ICON

mar dominates domestic markets

AND EVENTUALLY SPANS THE GLOBE.

Shown right: Every day in our restaurants, our associates rake individual responsibility to make sure

our guests have an enjoyable experience and make them want to come back.

Staying True

Staying True to

Applebee’s Future

If fiscal 2004 proved anything, it was that Applebee’s
is not immune from the forces and factors that affect
our economy and impact our segment. Yet when
challenges emerge, we are determined not to give in
to a knee-jerk reaction based on short-term results.
‘We remain convinced that our company is positioned
more favorably than most of our competitors,
and our focus continues to be on improving our
execution, delivering consistent results and staying
nimble in an uncertain environment.

Staying true to our clearly articulated strategies,
maintaining our discipline as a returns-focused com-
pany and leveraging the power of the Applebee’s
brand, our goals over the next three to five years
include system-wide sales growth of between 7 and
8 percent annually and system-wide comparable
sales increases of 3 to 4 percent each year. The
combination of restaurant operating margin and
general and administrative expense leverage, stock
repurchase activity and the impact of potential
franchise acquisitions are expected to contribute 4 to
S percent to annual diluted earnings per share

growth. As a result, diluted earnings per share are
expected to increase annually by 14 to 17 percent for
the next three to five years. We are also committed to
maintaining a return on equity of at least 20 percent.

Staying true to our vision for the future of
Applebee’s is about more than building restaurants ...
it’s about building lives, families and communities. If
we are successful, we will create an American icon
that dominates domestic markets and spans the
globe. We continually work to make sure that we
deserve to be called America’s Favorite Neighbor®
and remain committed to building one of the world’s
greatest brands.

e e

Lloyd L. Hill
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

March 2005
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PART 1
Item 1.  Business

General

References to “Applebee’s,” “we,” “us,” and “our” in this document are references to Applebee’s
International, Inc. and its subsidiaries and any predecessor companies of Applebee’s International, Inc.
We develop, franchise and operate casual dining restaurants under the name “Applebee’s Neighborhood
Grill & Bar.” With nearly 1,700 restaurants as of the fiscal year ended December 26, 2004, Applebee’s
Neighborhood Grill & Bar is the largest casual dining concept in the world, in terms of number of
restaurants and market share. Applebee’s International, Inc. maintains an Internet website address at
www.applebees.com. We make available free of charge through our website our annual report on Form
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports
as soon as they are reasonably available after these materials are electronically filed with or furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

We opened our first restaurant in 1986. We initially developed and operated six restaurants as a
franchisee of the Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar Division of an indirect subsidiary of W.R. Grace
& Co. In March 1988, we acquired substantially all the assets of our franchisor. When we acquired the
Applebee’s Division, it operated 13 restaurants and had ten franchisees, including us, operating 41
franchise restaurants.

As of December 26, 2004, there were 1,671 Applebee’s restaurants. Franchisees operated 1,247 of these
restaurants and 424 restaurants were company operated. The restaurants were located in 49 states and 12
countries outside of the United States. During 2004, 109 new restaurants were opened, including 77
franchise restaurants and 32 company restaurants.

Our current strategy is to focus solely on the Applebee’s concept. We currently expect that the
Applebee’s system will encompass at least 3,000 restaurants in the United States as well as the potential
for at least 1,000 restaurants internationally.




The following table sets forth certain unaudited financial information and other restaurant data relating to
company and franchise restaurants, as reported to us by franchisees:

Fiscal Year Ended
December 26, December 28, December 29,
2004 2003 2002
Number of restaurants:
Company:
Beginning of year.......ccc..oceveevereeivricccecnnenns 383 357 310
Restaurant Openings ..........cccceeeeecerrrscereenerseene 32 26 26
Restaurant closings......c.oceoceererrerceenenseneranncenns (1) ) —
Restaurants acquired from franchisees............ 10 11 21
Restaurants acquired by franchisees ............... — (9 —
End of Year......coccovevvnonrenceeecnmeecrcncenes 424 383 357
Franchise:
Beginning of Year......c.coccveveeenvriirnercnnnnnns 1,202 1,139 1,082
Restaurant OPenings ..........ceceeeeercererseererrnsenne 77 74 81
Restaurant closings........coeoveerceceererrnevenerieenen (22) 9) 3)
Restaurants acquired from franchisees............ (10) (11 21
Restaurants acquired by franchisees ............... — 9 —
End Of Year........ccovveeveverceerecereeieenenteseenecreeas 1,247 1,202 1,139
Total:
Beginning of year.........cccveeeeevcninnnncnnecnnnens 1,585 1,496 1,392
Restaurant Openings .........coceeeeveveeecencinnessenn 109 100 107
Restaurant closings.......co.eevevuiecerrrenvereesenerennes (23) (11) 3)
End of year........coooeeeieicceiieerecete e 1,671 1,585 1,496
Weighted average weekly sales per restaurant:
COMPANY ..oevereerreeemcretrineeseerencrersesssraesseene $ 46,536 §$ 45,000 $ 43,019
Franchise .....coooueeeceecceererneneneerreneeceieenene $ 47613 § 45,271 3 43,823
TOtAl..oiivereere e $ 47345 8§ 45205 % 43,641
Change in comparable restaurant sales:V
COMPANY .envovrnrrerereereeneriaresseereseaersesensosesenens 3.8% 5.2% 1.8%
FranchiSe .......cceecevmecenienneesnncreccsenecescencnee 52% 3.7% 3.6%
TOLA ..ottt e 4.8% 4.1% 3.2%
Total operating revenues (in thousands):
Company restaurant sales..........ccocovevrrereenen $ 976,798 $ 867,158 $ 724,616
Franchise royalties and fees@..............cccooe... 121,221 109,604 102,180
Other franchise income® ...........cceurvereerenen. 13,615 13,147 2,688
TOtal oo e $ 1111634 § 089,909 § 829,484

) When computing comparable restaurant sales, restaurants open for at least 18 months are compared from period to period.

@ Franchise royalties are generally 4% of each franchise restaurant’s reported monthly gross sales. Reported franchise sales, in
thousands, were $3,001,287, $2,725,179 and $2,519,373 in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Franchise fees typicaily
range from $30,000 to $35,000 for each restaurant opened.

©) Other franchise income includes insurance premiums from franchisee participation in our captive insurance program and
revenue from information technology products and services provided to certain franchisees.




The Applebee’s System

Concept. Each Applebee’s restaurant is designed as an attractive, friendly, neighborhood establishment
featuring moderately priced, high quality food and beverage items, table service and a comfortable
atmosphere. Our restaurants appeal to a wide range of customers including young adults, senior citizens and
families with young children.

Applebee’s also offers its customers the convenience of carry-out service. In 2002, we initiated a “To Go”
program which includes the use of standardized state-of-the-art packaging, interior and exterior signage and
a focused training program. In addition, the program features the additional convenience of our Carside To
Go™ initiative in which customers place their orders by telephone, park in designated spots at our
restaurants and servers deliver their orders to their vehicles. We completed the implementation of the
Carside To Go™ service at all company-owned restaurants where practicable in 2003 and franchisees
completed implementation in substantially all of the franchise restaurants in early 2005.

We have developed certain specifications for the design of our restaurants. Our restaurants are primarily
located in free-standing buildings, end caps of strip shopping centers, and shopping center malls. Each of
our restaurants generally has a bar, and many restaurants offer patio seating. The decor of each restaurant
incorporates artifacts and memorabilia such as old movie posters, musical instruments and sports equipment.
Restaurants also frequently display photographs, magazine and newspaper articles highlighting local history
and personalities. These items give each restaurant a unique, neighborhood identity, which is an important
aspect of the Applebee’s brand. In addition, we require that each restaurant be remodeled every six to seven
years to embody the design elements of the current prototype.

Menu. Each restaurant offers a diverse menu of high quality, moderately priced food and beverage items
consisting of traditional favorites and signature dishes. The restaurants feature a broad selection of entrees,
including beef, chicken, pork, seafood and pasta items prepared in a variety of cuisines, as well as
appetizers, salads, sandwiches, specialty drinks and desserts. Substantially all restaurants offer beer, wine,
liquor and premium specialty drinks. During 2004, alcoholic beverages accounted for 12.3% of company-
owned restaurant sales. During 2004, we launched a strategic alliance with Weight Watchers™ to offer
Weight Watchers™ branded menu alternatives to our guests. We currently have ten Weight Watchers™
items on our menu. As part of our exclusive arrangement with Weight Watchers™, we pay a percentage
royalty on the total sales for Weight Watchers™ menu items sold.

Restaurant Operations. We and our franchisees operate restaurants in accordance with operating standards
and specifications. These standards pertain to the quality and preparation of menu items, selection of menu
items, maintenance and handling of food, maintenance and cleanliness of premises and associate conduct.
Our quality assurance department is responsible for establishing and monitoring our food safety programs.
We develop all standards and specifications with input from franchisees, and they are applied on a system-
wide basis.

Training. We have a comprehensive training program for restaurant associates and managers. The training
programs utilize a combination of on-the-job training, video, computer and print-based materials. Program
materials are routinely revised to reflect the most recent operational procedures and standards.

Restaurant associates are provided with a structured orientation and five-day training program upon hire.
This training is provided by restaurant trainers who have completed an extensive certification process to
become a trainer. In addition, associates receive ongoing training to further develop their job skills and
knowledge.

Restaurant managers complete a training and orientation process upon hire. The program is executed at
certified training restaurants located throughout the Applebee’s system. The training program provides skill




and knowledge training for key operations and management processes. In addition, ongoing training and
development programs are offered for experienced managers regarding leadership and operations
management.

Prior to opening a new restaurant, a training program is provided to all new hourly associates. The training
is conducted by certified, experienced trainers from Applebee’s restaurants located throughout the system.
Upon the opening of the restaurant, the training team remains for an additional six days to provide support
and coaching to the new associates.

Marketing. We have historically concentrated our advertising and marketing efforts primarily on food-
specific promotions, Carside To Go™ and Applebee’s branded messaging. Our marketing includes
national, regional and local expenditures, utilizing primarily television, radio, direct mail and print media.
In 2004, approximately 4.0% of company restaurant sales was allocated for marketing purposes. This
amount includes contributions to the national marketing pool which develops and funds the specific national
promotions. We focus the remainder of our marketing expenditures on local marketing in areas with
company owned restaurants.

Supply Chain. Maintaining high food quality and system-wide consistency is a central focus of our supply
chain program. We establish quality standards for products used in the restaurants, and we maintain a
limited list of approved suppliers from which we and our franchisees must select. We periodically review
the quality of the products served in our domestic restaurants in an effort to ensure compliance with these
standards. We have negotiated purchasing agreements with most of our approved suppliers which result in
volume discounts for us and our franchisees. Additionally, we purchase and maintain inventories of certain
specialty products to assure sufficient supplies for the system. Due to the differences in the countries in
which our franchisees operate, we have specific requirements for each country.

Quality Assurance. We are committed to providing our customers with products that meet or exceed
regulatory and industry standards for food safety as well as our high quality standards. Our quality
assurance department establishes and monitors our food safety programs in domestic restaurants, including
restaurant, supplier and distributor audits, food safety and sanitation monitoring and product testing.

Company Restaurants

Company Restaurant Openings and Franchise Acquisitions. Our expansion strategy is to cluster restaurants
in targeted markets, thereby increasing consumer awareness and convenience, and enabling us to take
advantage of operational, distribution and advertising efficiencies. Our development experience indicates
that when we open multiple restaurants within a particular market, our market share increases.

In order to maximize overall system growth, our expansion strategy through 1992 emphasized franchise
arrangements with experienced, successful and financially capable restaurant operators. We continue to
expand the Applebee’s system across the United States through franchise operations, but beginning in 1992,
our growth strategy also included increasing the number of company owned restaurants. We have tried to
achieve this goal in two ways. First, we have developed strategic territories. Second, when franchises are
available for purchase under acceptable financial terms, we have selectively acquired existing franchise
restaurants and terminated the selling franchisee’s related development rights. Using this strategy, we have
opened 318 new restaurants and acquired 123 franchise restaurants over the last twelve years and have
expanded from a total of 31 company owned or operated restaurants as of December 27, 1992 to a total of
424 as of December 26, 2004. In addition, as part of our portfolio management strategy, we have sold 35
restaurants to franchisees during this twelve-year period.




We opened 32 new company Applebee’s restaurants in 2004 and anticipate opening at least 40 new
company Applebee’s restaurants in 2005, excluding up to eight restaurants that were closed in 2004 by a
former franchisee which we may re-open in Memphis, Tennessee. The following table shows the areas
where our company restaurants were located as of December 26, 2004:

Area
New England (includes Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire,

New York, Rhode Island and Vermont) ..........c.oeeeeeeeeneerirennncne 65
Detroit/Southern Michigan..........ccouevveeevcrcneiniiirercneecc e 62
Minneapolis/St. Paul, MinNeSota ...........coceeeveeeremrererecerecrerieenreccnnenss 58
St. Louis, MisSouri/TIHNOIS.........ccoveeeieceecerereeee e 47
NoOrth/Central TEXAS ......c.cccveereeremreereecenineesreereenseeesceseesnesseeessens 45
VITZINIA ettt s e s bbb es e s s sa s s ansasasesens 42
Kansas City, MisSOUT/KanSas. .....ccco.cuceverrveeererreneranenssssesersssssesasens 33
Washington, D.C. (Maryland, Virginia). ........cecocecvvmverenrcnrecenrnnenees 29
San Diego/Southern California ...........ccooceeeveeeereneveccccnrenncccennenees 20
Las Vegas/Reno, Nevada ..........ccecoeeioveererinicenieeeceeiesereeessnseenes 15
Albuquerque, New MEXICO ....cccvvvieermecerecerrenesereesecereereesieceeseenes 8

Restaurant Operations. The staff for a typical restaurant consists of one general manager, one kitchen
manager, two or three managers and approximately 60 hourly associates. All managers of company
owned restaurants receive a salary and performance bonus based on restaurant sales, profits and
adherence to our standards. As of December 26, 2004, we employed 4 Regional Vice Presidents of
Operations, 11 Directors of Operations and 69 Area Directors. The Area Directors’ duties include regular
restaurant visits and inspections which ensure the ongoing maintenance of our standards of quality,
service, cleanliness, value, and courtesy. In addition to providing a significant contribution to revenues
and operating earnings, we use company owned restaurants for many purposes which are integral to the
development of the entire system, including testing of new menu items and training of franchise
restaurant managers and operating personnel.

The Applebee’s Franchise System

Franchise Territory and Restaurant Openings. We currently have exclusive territory franchise
arrangements with 74 franchise groups, including 26 international franchisees. We have generally
selected franchisees that are experienced multi-unit restaurant operators who have operated other
restaurant concepts. Our franchisees operate Applebee’s restaurants in 42 states and 12 countries outside
of the United States. We have assigned the vast majority of all domestic territories in all states except
Hawaii or have designated them for company development.

As of December 26, 2004, there were 1,247 franchise restaurants. Franchisees opened 81 restaurants in
2002, 74 restaurants in 2003, and 77 restaurants in 2004. We anticipate at least 85 franchise restaurant
openings in 2005. Franchisees may open more or fewer restaurants depending upon the availability of
appropriate new sites.

Development of Restaurants. We make available to franchisees the design specifications for a typical
restaurant, and we retain the right to prohibit or modify the use of any set of plans. Each franchisee is
responsible for selecting the site for each restaurant within their territory. We assist franchisees in
selecting appropriate sites, and any selection made by a franchisee is subject to our approval. We also
conduct a physical inspection, review any proposed lease or purchase agreement and make available
demographic and other studies.




Domestic Franchise Arrangements. Generally, franchise arrangements consist of a development
agreement and separate franchise agreements. Development agreements grant the exclusive right to
develop a number of restaurants in a designated geographical area. The term of a domestic development
agreement is generally 20 years. The franchisee enters into a separate franchise agreement for the
operation of each restaurant. Each agreement has a term of 20 years and permits renewal for up to an
additional 20 years in accordance with the terms contained in the then current franchise agreement
(including the then current royalty rates and advertising fees) and upon payment of an additional franchise

fee.

For each restaurant developed, our standard franchise arrangement requires an initial franchisee fee
(which typically ranges from $30,000 to $35,000) and a royalty fee equal to 4% of the restaurant’s
monthly gross sales. We have previously executed agreements with a majority of our franchisees which
maintain the existing royalty fees of 4% and extend the current franchise and development agreements
until January 1, 2020. The revised agreements establish new restaurant development obligations over the
next several years. These revised agreements contain provisions which allow for the continued
development of the Applebee’s concept and support our long-term expectation of at least 3,000
restaurants in the United States. The terms, royalties and advertising fees under a limited number of
franchise agreements and the franchise fees under older development agreements vary from the currently
offered arrangements.

Marketing. In 2004, we required domestic franchisees to contribute 2.25% of their gross sales to the
national marketing pool and to spend at least 1.5% of their gross sales on local marketing and promotional
activities. In 2005, we will require domestic franchisees to contribute 2.75% of their gross sales to the
national marketing pool and to spend at least 1.0% of their gross sales on local marketing and promotional
activities. Franchisees also promote the opening of each restaurant and we reimburse the franchisee for
50% of the out-of-pocket opening advertising expenditures, subject to certain conditions. The maximum
amount we will reimburse for these expenditures is $2,500. Under our franchise agreements, we can
increase the combined amount of the advertising fee and the amount required to be spent on local
marketing and promotional activities to a maximum of 5% of gross sales.

Training and Support. We provide ongoing advice and assistance to franchisees in connection with the
operation and management of each restaurant through training sessions, meetings, seminars, on-premises
visits and by written or other material. We also assist franchisees on request with business planning,
restaurant development, technology and human resource efforts.

Operations Quality Control. We continuously monitor franchise restaurant operations, principally
through our full-time franchise area directors (29 as of December 26, 2004). Company and third-party
representatives make both scheduled and unannounced inspections of restaurants to ensure that only
approved products are in use and that our prescribed operations practices and procedures are being
followed. During 2004, these representatives made an average of two visits to each of our franchise
restaurants during which they conducted an inspection and consultation in the restaurant. We have the
right to terminate a franchise agreement if a franchisee does not operate and maintain a restaurant in
accordance with our requirements.

Franchise Business Council. We maintain a Franchise Business Council which provides us with advice
about operations, marketing, product development and other aspects of restaurant operations for the
purpose of improving the franchise system. As of December 26, 2004, the Franchise Business Council
consisted of eight franchisee representatives and three members of our senior management team. One
franchisee representative is a permanent member and one franchisee representative must be a franchisee
with ten or fewer restaurants. Franchisees elect the franchisee representatives annually.




Franchise Financing. Although financing is the sole responsibility of the franchisee, we make available
to franchisees information about financial institutions interested in financing the costs of restaurant
development for qualified franchisees. None of these financial institutions is our affiliate or agent, and
we have no control over the terms or conditions of any financing arrangement offered by these financial
institutions.

In 2003, we arranged for a third-party lease financing company to provide capital to qualified franchisees
for investments in certain sales and technology initiatives over a three-year period ending in September
2006 under standard leasing terms and conditions. Under the terms of the arrangement, we do not
guarantee any portion of the financing,.

In November 2003, we arranged for a third-party financing company to provide up to $75,000,000 to
qualified franchisees for short-term loans to fund remodel investments, subject to our approval. Under
the terms of this financing program, we will provide a limited guarantee pool for the loans advanced
during the three-year period ending December 2006. As of December 26, 2004, there were [oans
outstanding to two franchisees for approximately $900,000 under this program.

In May 2004, we arranged for a third-party financing company to provide up to $250,000,000 to qualified
franchisees for loans to fund development of new restaurants through October 2007, subject to our
approval. We will provide a limited guarantee of certain loans advanced under this program. As of
December 26, 2004, there were loans outstanding to two franchisees for approximately $13,600,000
under this program.

Competition

We expect competition in the casual dining segment of the restaurant industry to remain intense with
respect to price, service, location, concept, and the type and quality of food. There is also intense
competition for real estate sites, qualified management personnel, and hourly restaurant staff. Our
competitors include national, regional and local chains, as well as local owner-operated restaurants. We
have a number of well-established competitors. Some of these companies have been in existence longer
than we have, and therefore they may be better established in the markets where our restaurants are or
may be located.

Service Marks

We own the rights to the “Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar®” service mark and certain variations
thereof and to other service marks used in our system in the United States and in various foreign
countries. We are aware of names and marks similar to our service marks used by third parties in certain
limited geographical areas. We intend to protect our service marks by appropriate legal action where and
when necessary.

International Franchising

International Franchise Arrangements. We continue to pursue international franchising of the
Applebee’s concept under a long-term strategy of controlled expansion. This strategy includes seeking
qualified franchisees with the resources to open multiple restaurants in each territory and those with
familiarity with the specific local business environment. We currently are focusing on international
franchising in Canada, Mexico, Central and South America and the Mediterranean/Middle East. In this
regard, we currently have development agreements with 26 international franchisees. These franchisees
operated 58 international restaurants as of December 26, 2004. The success of further international
expansion will depend on, among other things, local acceptance of the Applebee’s concept and our ability




to attract qualified franchisees and operating personnel. We also must comply with the regulatory
requirements of the local jurisdictions, and supervise international franchisee operations effectively.

We work closely with our international franchisees to develop and implement the Applebee’s system
outside the United States, recognizing commercial, cultural and dietary diversity. These local issues
involve the need to be flexible and pragmatic on all elements of the system, including menu, restaurant
operations, training, marketing, purchasing and financing. Our strategy of controlled expansion allows us
to address these issues in a deliberate and systematic manner.

Government Regulation

Our restaurants are subject to numerous federal, state, and local laws affecting health, sanitation and
safety standards. Our restaurants also are subject to state and local licensing regulation of the sale of
alcoholic beverages. Each restaurant is required to obtain appropriate licenses from regulatory authorities
allowing it to sell liquor, beer, and wine. We also require that each restaurant obtain food service licenses
from local health authorities. Our licenses to sell alcoholic beverages must be renewed annually and may
be suspended or revoked at any time for cause. This would include violations of any laws or regulations
pertaining to alcoholic beverage control by us or our associates. Among such laws are those regulating
the minimum age of patrons or associates, advertising, wholesale purchasing, and inventory control. If
one of our restaurants failed to maintain its license to sell alcohol or serve food, it would significantly
harm the success of that restaurant. In order to reduce this risk, we operate each restaurant in accordance
with standardized procedures designed to facilitate compliance with all applicable codes and regulations.

We are subject to various federal and state environmental regulations, but these regulations have not had a
material adverse effect on our operations. New environmental requirements and regulations could delay
or prevent development of new restaurants in particular locations.

Our employment practices are governed by various governmental employment regulations. These include
minimum wage, overtime, immigration, family leave and working condition regulations.

We are subject to a variety of federal and state laws governing franchise sales and the franchise
relationship. In general, these laws and regulations impose certain disclosure and registration
requirements prior to the sale and marketing of franchises. Recent decisions of several state and federal
courts and recently enacted or proposed federal and state laws demonstrate a trend toward increased
protection of the rights and interests of franchisees against franchisors. Such decisions and laws may
limit the ability of franchisors to enforce certain provisions of franchise agreements or to alter or
terminate franchise agreements. Due to the scope of our business and the complexity of franchise
regulations, we may encounter minor compliance issues from time to time. We do not believe, however,
that any of these issues will have a material adverse effect on our business.

Under certain court decisions and statutes, owners of restaurants and bars in some states in which we own
or operate restaurants may be held liable for serving alcohol to intoxicated customers whose subsequent
conduct results in injury or death to a third party. We cannot guarantee that we will not be subject to such
liability. We do believe, however, that our insurance presently provides adequate coverage for such
liability.

Employees

As of December 26, 2004, we employed approximately 28,800 full and part-time associates. Of those,
approximately 590 were corporate personnel, 1,840 were restaurant managers or managers in training and
26,370 were employed in non-management full and part-time restaurant positions. Of the 590 corporate
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associates, approximately 200 were in management positions and 390 were general office associates,
including part-time associates.

We consider our associate relations to be good. Most associates, other than restaurant management and
corporate personnel, are paid on an hourly basis. We believe that we provide working conditions and
wages that compare favorably with those of our competition. We have never experienced a work
stoppage due to labor difficulty, and our associates are not covered by a collective bargaining agreement.

Executive and Other Senior Officers of the Registrant

Our executive and other senior officers as of December 26, 2004 are shown below.

Name Age Position
Lloyd L. Hill........................ 60  Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer

and President (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
. effective January 1, 2005)
David L. Goebel .................. 54  Executive Vice President of Operations and Chief Operating
Officer (President and Chief Operating Officer effective
January 1, 2005)

Steven K. Lumpkin............... 50 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer,
and Member of the Board of Directors

John C. Cywinski................. 42  Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer

Louis A. Kaucic................... 53  Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer

Rohan St. George................. 45  President of International Division

Philip R. Crimmins.............. 53 Senior Vice President of Development

Michael Czinege................... 51 Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer

Kurt Hankins..........ccevveneen... 44  Senior Vice President of Menu Development and Innovation

David R. Parsley .................. 58  Senior Vice President of Supply Chain Management

Carin L. Stutz....................... 48  Senior Vice President of Company Operations (Executive Vice
President of Operations effective January 1, 2005)

Carol A. DiRaimo................ 43 Vice President of Investor Relations

Beverly O. Elving................ 51  Vice President of Accounting (Vice President and Controller
effective February 21, 2005)

Rebecca R. Tilden................ 49  Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel

Lloyd L. Hill was elected a director in August 1989. Mr. Hill was appointed Executive Vice President
and Chief Operating Officer in January 1994. In December 1994, he assumed the role of President in
addition to his role as Chief Operating Officer. Effective January 1, 1997, Mr. Hill assumed the role of
Co-Chief Executive Officer. In January 1998, he assumed the full duties of Chief Executive Officer. In
May 2000, Mr. Hill was elected Chairman of the Board of Directors. As part of Applebee’s succession
plan, Mr. Goebel was named President effective January 1, 2005. Prior to joining Applebee’s, Mr. Hill
served as President of Kimberly Quality Care, a home health care and nurse personnel staffing company
from December 1989 to December 1993, where he also served as a director from 1988 to 1993, having
joined that organization in 1980.

David L. Goebel was employed by Applebee’s in February 2001 as Senior Vice President of Franchise
Operations and was promoted to Executive Vice President of Operations in December 2002. In January
2004, Mr. Goebel was promoted to Chief Operating Officer. In January 2005, he was also named
President. Prior to joining Applebee’s, Mr. Goebel headed a management company that provided
consulting and strategic planning services to various businesses from April 1998 to February 2001. Prior
to 1998, he was a franchise principal with an early developer group of the Boston Market concept. Mr.
Goebel’s business experience also includes positions as Vice President of Business Development for
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Rent-a-Center (a subsidiary of Thorn, EMI) and Vice President of Operations for Ground Round
restaurants.

Steven K. Lumpkin was employed by Applebee’s in May 1995 as Vice President of Administration. In
January 1996, he was promoted to Senior Vice President of Administration. In November 1997, he
assumed the position of Senior Vice President of Strategic Development and in January 1998 was
promoted to Executive Vice President of Strategic Development. He was named Chief Development
Officer in March 2001. In March 2002, Mr. Lumpkin assumed the position of Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer. In January 2004, he was appointed to the Board of Directors. Prior to joining Applebee’s,
Mr. Lumpkin was a Senior Vice President of a division of the Olsten Corporation, Kimberly Quality
Care, from July 1993 until January 1995. From June 1990 until July 1993, Mr. Lumpkin was an
Executive Vice President and a member of the board of directors of Kimberly Quality Care. From
January 1978 until June 1990, Mr. Lumpkin was employed by Price Waterhouse LLP, where he served as
a management consulting partner and certified public accountant.

John C. Cywinski was employed by Applebee’s in July 2001 as Senior Vice President and Chief
Marketing Officer and he was promoted to Executive Vice President in January 2004. Prior to joining
Applebee’s, Mr. Cywinski was employed as Vice President of Brand Strategy for McDonald’s
Corporation from April 1999 to July 2001. From October 1996 to April 1999, he was President of Buena
Vista Pictures Marketing, the motion picture division of The Walt Disney Company. Prior to The Walt
Disney Company, Mr. Cywinski was Vice President of U.S. Marketing for Burger King Corporation,
where he held various positions of increasing responsibility from 1989 to 1996. He started his career with
the Leo Burnett Advertising Agency in 1984.

Louis A. Kaucic was employed by Applebee’s in October 1997 as Senior Vice President of Human
Resources. He was named Chief People Officer in March 2001 and Executive Vice President in March
2003. Prior to joining Applebee’s, Mr. Kaucic was Vice President of Human Resources and later
promoted to Senior Vice President of Human Resources with Unique Casual Restaurants, Inc., which
operated several restaurant concepts, from July 1992 until October 1997. From 1982 to 1992, he was
employed by Pizza Hut, Inc. in a variety of positions, including Director of Employee Relations. From
1978 to 1982, Mr. Kaucic was employed by Kellogg’s as an Industrial Relations Manager.

Rohan M. St. George was employed by Applebee’s in November 2004 as President of the International
Division. Prior to joining Applebee’s, Mr. St. George was a managing director for Yum Restaurants
International which included responsibility for Puerto Rico, the U.S Virgin Islands and Venezuela. From
1998 to 2003, he was Vice President of Global Operations for KFC, Pizza Hut and Taco Bell. Prior to
1998, Mr. St. George had 14 years operations experience with Pizza Hut and KFC in various management
positions.

Philip R. Crimmins was employed by Applebee’s in August 2002 as Vice President of Operations
Excellence. In September 2003, Mr. Crimmins was promoted to Senior Vice President of Development.
Prior to joining Applebee’s, he was employed by Pizza Hut, Inc. for 27 years, most recently as Vice
President of Service Strategies. While at Pizza Hut, Inc., Mr. Crimmins held several other positions of
increasing responsibility, including senior leadership positions in research and development, concept
development, customer satisfaction, field training, and restaurant operations.

Mike Czinege was employed by Applebee’s in April 2004 as Senior Vice President and Chief
Information Officer. Prior to joining Applebee’s, Mr. Czinege was Executive Vice President of North
American operations for Celerant Consulting. From 1996 to 2004, he was a partner and later Vice
President of Cap Gemini Ernst & Young, one of the world’s leading providers of consulting, technology
and outsourcing services. Mr. Czinege has nearly three decades of industry and consulting experience in
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manufacturing and supply chain management operations, business planning, sales and marketing, and
information systems.

Kurt Hankins was employed by Applebee’s in August 2001 as Vice President of Research and
Development. In December 2003, Mr. Hankins was promoted to Senior Vice President of Menu
Development and Innovation. Prior to joining Applebee’s, he served as Vice President of Food and
Beverage for Darden Restaurants, Inc. from July 1999 through July 2001. From August 1994 to July
1999, he served as Director of Food Research and Development for Darden Restaurants, Inc. Prior to his
employment with Darden Restaurants, Inc., he held various positions in food and beverage research and
development within the restaurant industry.

David R. Parsley was employed by Applebee’s in April 2000 as Senior Vice President of Purchasing and
Distribution. In January 2003, Mr. Parsley was named Senior Vice President of Supply Chain
Management. Prior to joining Applebee’s, Mr. Parsley held several positions with Prandium, Inc.,
operator of El Torito, Chi-Chi’s and Koo Koo Roo, from November 1996 to April 2000, most recently as
Senior Vice President of Quality and Supply Chain Management. He has also held purchasing positions
with The Panda Management Company, Carl Karcher Enterprises, Proficient Food Company, Inc., and
Baxter Healthcare Corporation.

Carin L. Stutz was employed by Applebee’s in November 1999 as Senior Vice President of Company
Operations. In January 2005, she was promoted to Executive Vice President of Operations. Prior to
joining Applebee’s, Ms. Stutz was Division Vice President with Wendy’s International from July 1994 to
November 1999. From 1993 to 1994, she was Regional Operations Vice President for Sodexho, USA.
From 1990 to 1993, Ms. Stutz was employed by Nutri/System, Inc. as Vice President of Corporate
Operations. Prior to 1990, Ms. Stutz was employed for 12 years with Wendy’s International.

Carol A. DiRaimo was employed by Applebee’s in November 1993 as Associate Director of Financial
Planning and Reporting and was promoted to Director in 1995. She was named Director of Treasury and
Corporate Analysis in 1998 and Director of Investor Relations and Corporate Analysis in April 2000. She
was promoted to Executive Director of Investor Relations in January 2003 and Vice President of Investor
Relations in February 2004. Prior to joining Applebee’s, she was employed by Gilbert/Robinson, Inc.
from May 1989 to November 1993. Ms. DiRaimo, a certified public accountant, was also employed by
Deloitte Haskins & Sells for six years.

Beverly O. Elving was employed by Applebee’s in June 1998 as Director of Corporate Accounting. In
September 2002, Ms. Elving was promoted to Vice President of Accounting. In February 2005, she was
named Vice President and Controller. Prior to joining Applebee’s, she was Chief Financial Officer from
1996 to 1998 for Integrated Medical Resources, a publicly-held management services company. From
1990 to 1996, Ms. Elving was employed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as Director of
Financial Operations and was later promoted to Vice President of Financial Operations & Accounting.
Ms. Elving, a certified public accountant, was also employed by Arthur Andersen & Co. for five years.

Rebecca R. Tilden was employed by Applebee’s in November 2003 and became Vice President and
General Counsel in January 2004. Prior to joining Applebee’s, Ms. Tilden was an independent consultant
specializing in corporate compliance and ethics issues. From 1987 to 2000, Ms. Tilden was employed by
Aventis Pharmaceuticals, Inc., in various positions of increasing responsibility and served most recently
as Vice President, Assistant General Counsel and Secretary.

13




Item 2. Properties

As of December 26, 2004, we owned and operated 424 restaurants. Of these, we leased the building for
84 sites, owned the building and leased the land for 176 sites, and owned the land and building for 164
sites. In addition, as of December 26, 2004, we owned 9 sites for future development of restaurants and
had entered into 29 lease agreements for restaurant sites we plan to open during 2005. Our leases
generally have an initial term of 10 to 20 years, with renewal terms of 5 to 20 years, and provide for a
fixed rental plus, in certain instances, percentage rentals based on gross sales. In addition, our leases in
many instances include escalation of rent payments during the initial term and/or during the renewal

terms.

We own an 80,000 square foot office building and lease a 23,000 square foot office building in Overland
Park, Kansas, located in the Kansas City metropolitan area, in which our corporate offices are
headquartered. We also lease office space in certain regions in which we operate restaurants.

Under our franchise agreements, we have certain rights to gain control of a restaurant site in the event of
default under the lease or the franchise agreement.
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The following table sets forth the 49 states and the twelve countries outside of the United States in which
Applebee’s are located and the number of restaurants operating in each state or country as of December
26, 2004:

Number of Restaurants

State or Country Company Franchise Total System
Domestic:
Alabama — 27 27
Alaska — 2 2
Arizona — 26 26
Arkansas — 7 7
California 21 77 98
Colorado —_ 30 30
Connecticut. — 11 11
Delaware 2 8 10
Florida 92 92
Georgia —_— 67 67
Idaho.......ccoveenen. — 9 9
Illinois 10 46 56
Indiana.......coocovveeeeeeecreiecen 5 57 62
—_— 23 23
15 19 34
Kentucky ...coeveveeneerreccieceeee 5 30 35
Louisiana.......ccceeveeerecveecemreeceeerens — 17 17
Maine .............. 8 — 8
Maryland ......... 9 12 21
Massachusetts 32 —_ 32
Michigan ............. 62 16 78
Minnesota........ 54 2 56
MiISSISSIPPi..eereereerrcenrmrennesenerenenans — 11 11
% TERI0TTY o VSO 44 10 54
— 7 7
— 18 18
14 — 14
New Hampshire......c.occovverinrecnenne 14 — 14
New JErsey ....coocerereerrmmerrenrenesennne — 38 38
NeW MEXICO vvvmereernrreeerirerrienrenns 8 9 17
New YOrK..oooveeeeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeen 1 88 89
1 52 53
— 9 9
— 82 82
— 15 15
— 16 16
Pennsylvania. 1 51 52
Rhode Island..........ccoveuen... 7 — 7
South Carolina — 40 40
South Dakota.......ccecvenneenn — 5 5
Tennessee ........ccoceemeeeeerienecicrenne 1 36 37
TeXAS ..vveeeeeree v 45 34 79
Utah..ooovceeereeeeveeeeeeeenan. — 12 12
Vermont.... 3 — 3
Virginia .... 57 — 57
Washington........oecvenvevveneeenrncennns — 26 26
West Virginia 1 12 13
WiISCODSIN ..vveeveseeeeeeeeeeteeeeeerenes 4 35 39
WYoming.........ooeeeeererernverirerneens — 5 5
Total Domestic .....cceeveveeeeeeecireenne 424 1,189 1,613
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Number of Restaurants
State or Country Company Franchise Total System

Other countries:

— 1 1
— 1 1
— 19 19
— 1 1
_ | 1
_ 6 6
— 3 3
— 2 2
— 19 19
_ 2 2
_ 2 2
_ 1 1
— 58 58
424 1,247 1,671

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various legal actions which include, without limitation, employment law related
matters, dram shop claims, personal injury claims and other such normal restaurant operational matters.
In each instance, we believe that we have meritorious defenses to the allegations made and we are
vigorously defending these claims.

While the resolution of the matters described above may have an impact on our financial results for the
period in which they are resolved, we believe that the ultimate disposition of these matters will not,
individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect upon our business or consolidated
financial position.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.
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Item 5.

PARTII

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock trades on The Nasdaq Stock Market® under the symbol APPB.

The table below sets forth for the fiscal quarters indicated the reported high and low sale prices of
our common stock, as reported on The Nasdaq Stock Market®.

2004 2003
High Low High Low
First Quarter $ 28.04m § 23.80m $ 1887m § 15.39m
Second Quarter $§ 28,5500 § 2330 $ 21170 § 17.830
Third Quarter $ 26.72 $ 22.50 $ 22310 § 19.830
Fourth Quarter $ 26.68 $ 22.26 $ 26.79m § 20.530

Number of stockholders of record at December 26, 2004: 1,351

We declared an annual dividend of $0.06 per common share on December 9, 2004 for
stockholders of record on December 24, 2004, and the dividend was paid on January 21, 2005.
We declared an annual dividend of $0.05 per common share® on December 11, 2003 for
stockholders of record on December 26, 2003, and the dividend was paid on January 23, 2004.

We presently anticipate continuing the payment of cash dividends based upon our annual net
income. The actual amount of such dividends will depend upon future earnings, resuits of
operations, capital requirements, our financial condition and certain other factors. There can be
no assurance as to the amount of net income that we will generate in 2005 or future years and,
accordingly, there can be no assurance as to the amount that will be available for the declaration
of dividends, if any.

For information on our equity compensation plans, refer to Item 12, “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”

(IThe sales prices and dividend amounts have been adjusted to reflect a three-for-two stock split effected as a 50% stock dividend
paid on June 15, 2004.
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5. Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During fiscal year 2004, we repurchased 3,993,670 shares of our common stock at an average
price of $24.97 for an aggregate cost of $99,700,000. The table below sets forth purchases of our
common stock during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004:

Purchases of Equity Securities)
(@ () (©) (@
Total Number of Maximum Dollar Value of
Shares Purchased as Shares that May Yet Be
Total Number Average Part of Publicly Purchased Under the Plans or
of Shares Price Paid |  Announced Plans or Programs

Period Purchased Per Share Programs (in thousands)
September 27, 2004 through
October 26, 2004 3,945® $25.19 — $11,532
October 27, 2004 through 4 ,
November 26, 2004 500,875® $23.55 488,700 $ 32
November 27, 2004 through :
December 26, 2004 496@ $25.10 — $ 32

Total 505,316

@ In May 2002, our Board of Directors authorized a repurchase of up to $75,000,000 of our common stock through May 2005.
In December 2003, our Board of Directors authorized an additional repurchase of up to $80,000,000 of our common stock. The
May 2002 authorization limit was met in January 2004. In October 2004, our Board of Directors authorized additional
repurchases of up to $150,000,000 beginning in 2005 and approved a written plan for repurchases of our common stock in the
open market in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

@ Represents shares received as partial payment for shares issued under stock option plans.

® Included 12,175 shares received as partial payment for shares issued under stock option plans.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth for the periods and the dates indicated our selected financial data. The
fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 contained 53 weeks, and all other periods presented contained 52
weeks. The following should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and
Notes thereto and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Fiscal Year Ended
December 26, December 28, December 29, December 30, December 31,
2004 2003 200200 20010 @ 20000
(as restated) (as restated) (as restated) (as restated)
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS DATA:
Company restaurant sales ........................ $ 976,798 $ 867,158 $ 724,616 $ 651,119 $ 605,414
Franchise royalties and fees..................... 121,221 109,604 102,180 93,225 - 84,738
Other franchise income.......cccoeveerevmeenne.. 13,615 13,147 2,688 — e
Total operating revenues .................. $1,111,634 $ 989,909 $ 829,484 $ 744,344 $ 690,152
Operating earnings.........ccooveeveersrerreeerenes $ 165,280 $ 152,677 $ 126,590 $ 110,681 $ 106,984
NEt CAMINES ..evrerrererereiriereerereeereiares e $ 110,865 $ 94349 $ 80,527 $ 63,298 $ 63,020
Basic pet earnings per share .................... $ 1.36 $ 1.14 $ 097 $ 076 $ 0.71
Diluted net earnings per share ................. $ 1.33 8 110 $ 094 $ 074 $ 071
Dividends declared per share................... $ 0.06 $ 0.05 $ 004 $§ o0.04 $ 003
Basic weighted average shares
oUtStANding.......coveervrvereniriesereennrerenens 81,528 82,944 83,407 83,268 88,261
Diluted weighted average shares
outstanding..........cooeeeereiieeeivieseeneeieenns 83,600 85,409 85,382 85,316 88,755
BALANCE SHEET DATA
(AT END OF FISCAL YEAR): ‘
Total ASSELS c.voeeveeieereieevere et eerreens $ 754,431 $ 651,078 $ 573,647 $ 506,036 $ 475,932
Long-term debt, including ‘
CUITENt POTLION «..veeeeeeererereeeereeeeereaenes $ 35,694 $ 20,862 $ 52,563 $ 74,568 $ 91,355

Stockholders’ equity .........cceerevernvereennns $ 496,727 $ 453,143 $ 385,201 - $ 320,303 $ 277,941

) Fiscal years 2003 and 2002 have been restated from amounts previously reported to reflect certain adjustments as discussed in
Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Restatement of Financial
Statements™ and Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements. Conforming adjustments have been made to previously
audited fiscal year 2001 and 2000 selected financial data. Total assets and stockholders’ equity as of the beginning of fiscal year
2000 reflect a cumulative impact of $3,736,000 and $3,636,000, respectively, resulting from the restatement.
@ Beginning in 2002, we ceased amortization of goodwill in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.

142, “Goodwill and Other Intangibles”.

19




Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

Restatement of Financial Statements

The accompanying Management’s Discussion and Analysis gives effect to the restatement of our
consolidated financial statements for fiscal years 2003 and 2002 to correct our accounting treatment for
leases, depreciation of related leasehold improvements and for previously identified immaterial errors,
primarily related to vacation and workers’ compensation, as described in Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

General

We operate on a 52 or 53 week fiscal year ending on the last Sunday in December. Our fiscal years are as
follows:

Fiscal Year Number

Fiscal Year Ending of Weeks
2002 December 29, 2002 52
2003 December 28, 2003 52
2004 December 26, 2004 52
2005 December 25, 2005 52
2006 December 31, 2006 53

Our revenues are generated from three primary sources:

e Company restaurant sales (food and beverage sales)
e Franchise royalties and fees
e  Other franchise income

Beverage sales consist of sales of alcoholic beverages, while non-alcoholic beverages are included in food
sales. Franchise royalties are generally 4% of each franchise restaurant’s monthly gross sales. Franchise
fees typically range from $30,000 to $35,000 for each restaurant opened. Other franchise income
includes insurance premiums for the current year and premium audit adjustments for prior years from
franchisee participation in our captive insurance program and revenue from information technology
products and services provided to certain franchisees. In 2005, we will have fewer franchisee participants
due to the termination of one of our captive programs which will result in a decrease in franchise
premiums recognized in other franchise income of approximately $9,500,000.

Certain expenses relate only to company operated restaurants. These include:

Food and beverage costs
Labor costs

Direct and occupancy costs
Pre-opening expenses

Cost of other franchise income includes the costs related to franchisee participation in our captive
insurance program and costs related to information technology products and services provided to certain
franchisees. In addition, cost of other franchise income in 2004 includes the franchisee portion of the
riblet inventory impairment (see Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements). In 2005, we will have
fewer franchisee participants due to the termination of one of our captive programs which will result in a
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decrease in franchise premiums expense in the cost of other franchise income of approximately
$9,500,000.

Other expenses, such as general and administrative and amortization expenses, relate to both company
operated restaurants and franchise operations.

Overview

Applebee’s International, Inc. and our subsidiaries develop, franchise and operate casual dining
restaurants under the name “Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar” which is the largest casual dining
concept in the world with nearly 1,700 system-wide restaurants open as of December 26, 2004. The
casual dining segment of the restaurant industry is highly competitive and there are many factors that
affect our profitability. Our industry is susceptible to changes in economic conditions, trends in lifestyles,
fluctuating costs, government regulation, availability of resources and consumer perceptions. When
evaluating and assessing our business, we believe there are five key factors:

e Development — the number of new company and franchise restaurants opened during the period. As
the largest casual dining concept in the world, Applebee’s has a unique opportunity to leverage our
brand, system size and scale to optimize our future growth. Our expansion strategy has been to
cluster restaurants in targeted markets, thereby increasing consumer awareness and convenience, and
enabling us to take advantage of operational, distribution and advertising efficiencies. We currently
expect that the Applebee’s system will encompass at least 3,000 restaurants in the United States, as
well as the potential for at least 1,000 restaurants internationally. In 2004, we opened 109 restaurants
including 32 company and 77 franchise restaurants. We have opened at least 100 restaurants each
year for the past 12 years. In 2005, we currently expect to open at least 125 restaurants, comprised of
40 company and 85 franchise restaurants. In addition, we may re-open up to eight company
restaurants in 2005 that were closed in 2004 by a former franchisee in Memphis, Tennessee, which are
not included in our expectations above.

e Comparable restaurant sales — a year-over-year comparison of sales for restaurants open at least 18
months. Our revenues are generated primarily from company restaurant sales, franchise royalties and
fees and other franchise income. Increases in company and franchise comparable restaurant sales will
result in increases in company restaurant sales and franchise fees and royalties. Company, franchise
and system-wide comparable sales increased 3.8%, 5.2% and 4.8%, respectively, in 2004. We have
had 26 consecutive quarters of positive system-wide comparable sales growth. We currently expect
system-wide comparable restaurant sales to increase by at least 3% percent in 2005, with results
expected to be lower during the first part of the year and accelerate throughout the year. Comparable
restaurant sales increases are driven by increases in the average guest check and/or increases in guest
traffic. Average guest check increases result from menu price increases and/or a change in menu mix.
Although we may have increases in our average guest check from period to period, our main focus
has been increasing guest traffic as we view this component to be more indicative of the health of the
Applebee's brand. We are constantly seeking to increase guest traffic by improving our menu with
semi-annual new menu rollouts and implementation of new programs such as Carside to Go™ and
Weight Watchers™. Carside To Go™ is expected to be a driver of company, franchise and system-
wide comparable sales growth in 2005.

o Company restaurant margin — company restaurant sales less food and beverage, labor, direct and
occupancy restaurant costs and pre-opening expenses expressed as a percentage of company
restaurant sales. Company restaurant margin was 15.6% in 2004 and we currently expect that our
margin will be similar in 2005. Company restaurant margin is susceptible to fluctuations in
commodity costs, labor costs and other operating costs such as utilities costs. We attempt to negotiate
contracts for the majority of our food products in order to mitigate the impact of rising commodity
costs. We currently expect commodity costs for beef, poultry and other proteins to increase by
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approximately 1.5% in 2005. Labor costs are impacted by many factors, including minimum wage
rate and other employment laws.

e General and administrative expenses — general and administrative expense expressed as a percentage
of total operating revenues. General and administrative expense leverage is a key focus for us. We
currently expect that revenues will grow faster than general and administrative expenses. In 2005,
general and administrative expenses as a percent of total revenues are currently expected to be in the
high-8% range.

¢ Return on equity — net earnings expressed as a percent of average stockholders’ equity. We believe
this is an important indicator as it allows us to evaluate our ability to create value for our
shareholders. We have exceeded our stated goal of at least 20% return on equity for the past six years
and are a leader in the casual dining industry in this category.

The above overview contains forward-looking statements. Please refer to “Forward-Looking Statements”
later in this section.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is based upon
our consolidated financial statements, which were prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. These principles require us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.
Actual results may differ from these estimates, and such differences may be material to our consolidated
financial statements. We believe that the following significant accounting policies involve a significant
degree of judgment or complexity.

Inventory valuation: We state inventories at the lower of cost, using the first-in, first-out method, or
market. Market is determined based upon our estimates of the net realizable value.

We purchase and maintain inventories of certain specialty products to assure sufficient supplies to the
system. We review and make quality control inspections of our inventories to determine obsolescence on
an ongoing basis. These reviews require management to make certain estimates and judgments regarding
projected usage which may change in the future and may require us to record an inventory impairment.

Property and equipment:  We report property and equipment at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the lease term, as defined in operating
leases in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, or the estimated useful life of the related asset.
The useful lives of the assets are based upon management’s expectations. We periodically review the
assets for changes in circumstances which may impact their useful lives. If there are changes in
circumstances that shorten an asset’s useful life, we will recognize increased depreciation expense for that
asset in future periods.

Impairment of long-lived assets: We periodically review restaurant property and equipment for
impairment on a restaurant by restaurant basis using historical cash flows as well as current estimates of
future cash flows and/or appraisals. We review other long-lived assets annually and when events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the asset may not be recoverable. The recoverability is
assessed in most instances by comparing the carrying value to its undiscounted cash flows. This
assessment process requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding future cash flows and
estimated useful lives which are subject to a significant degree of judgment. If these assumptions change
in the future, we may be required to record impairment charges for these assets.
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Income taxes: We record valuation allowances against our deferred tax assets, when necessary, in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes.” Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on future taxable earnings and is therefore
uncertain. We assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets in each of the jurisdictions in which we
operate will be recovered from future taxable income. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation
allowance to recognize the extent to which, more likely than not, the future tax benefits will not be
realized.

We are periodically audited by foreign, state and local tax authorities for both income and sales and use
taxes. We record accruals when we determine it is probable that we have an exposure in a matter relating
to an audit. The accruals may change in the future due to new developments in each matter.

Legal and insurance reserves: We are periodically involved in various legal actions. We are required to
assess the probability of any adverse judgments as well as the potential range of loss. We determine the
required accruals after a review of the facts of each legal action.

We use estimates in the determination of the appropriate liabilities for general liability, workers’
compensation and health insurance. The estimated liability is established based upon historical claims
data and third-party actuarial estimates of settlement costs for incurred claims. Unanticipated changes in
these factors may require us to revise our estimates.

We periodically reassess our assumptions and judgments and make adjustments when significant facts
and circumstances dictate. A change in any of the above estimates could impact our consolidated
statements of earnings and the related asset or liability recorded in our consolidated balance sheets would
be adjusted accordingly. Historically, actual results have not been materially different than the estimates
that are described above.

Captive Insurance Subsidiary

In 2002, we formed Neighborhood Insurance, Inc., 2 Vermont corporation and a wholly-owned captive
insurance subsidiary to provide Applebee’s International, Inc. and qualified franchisees with workers’
compensation and general liability insurance. Applebee’s International, Inc. and covered franchisees
make premium payments to the captive insurance company which pays administrative fees and insurance
claims, subject to individual and aggregate maximum claim limits under the captive insurance company’s
reinsurance policies. Franchisee premium amounts billed by the captive insurance company are
established based upon third-party actuarial estimates of settlement costs for incurred claims and
administrative fees. The franchisee premiums are included in other franchise income ratably over the
policy year. The related offsetting expenses are included in cost of other franchise income. Accordingly,
we do not expect franchisee participation in the captive insurance program to have a material impact on
our net earnings. In 2005, we will have fewer franchisee participants in our captive insurance program as
we have reduced the number of insurance products offered by the captive insurance company.

Our consolidated balance sheets include the following balances related to the captive insurance
subsidiary:

e Franchise premium receivables of approximately $1,900,000 and $450,000 as of December 26,
2004 and December 28, 2003, respectively, included in receivables related to captive insurance
subsidiary.

e Cash equivalent and other long-term investments restricted for the payment of claims of
approximately $16,700,000 and $10,000,000 as of December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003,
respectively, included in restricted assets related to captive insurance subsidiary.

o Loss reserve and unearned premiums related to captive insurance subsidiary of approximately
$19,600,000 and $11,000,000 as of December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003, respectively.
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o Other miscellaneous items, net, of approximately $1,000,000 and $550,000 as of December 26,
2004 and December 28, 2003, respectively, included in several line items in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Acquisitions

On April 26, 2004, we completed our acquisition of the operations and assets of 10 Applebee’s
restaurants located in Southern California for approximately $13,800,000 in cash. Our financial
statements reflect the results of operations for these restaurants subsequent to the date of acquisition. This
transaction did not have a significant impact on our net earnings for 2004.

On March 24, 2003, we acquired the operations and assets of 11 Applebee’s restaurants located in
Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky and Missouri for $21,800,000 in cash and $1,400,000 in assumed debt from a
franchisee. The total cash payment included $20,800,000 paid at closing, approximately $200,000 paid as
a deposit in 2002 and approximately $800,000 paid in the second quarter of 2003.

On November 7, 2002, we acquired the operations and assets of 21 Applebee’s restaurants located in the
Washington, D.C. area from a franchisee. Under the terms of the purchase agreement and the agreement
with the franchisee’s secured lender, the total purchase price of the acquisition was $34,350,000. Our
financial statements reflect the results of operations for these restaurants subsequent to the date of
acquisition.

The following table is comprised of actual company restaurant sales for the three restaurant acquisitions
above which are included in our consolidated financial statements for each period presented and pro
forma company restaurant sales assuming the acquisitions occurred at the beginning of the preceding
fiscal year for each acquisition (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
Actual company restaurant sales
for acquired restaurants.............coceeeeceeerecrennne $ 17600 $ 19000 $ 6,300
Pro forma company restaurant sales
for acquired restaurants............cocoeeceveerecreeeenne $ 26400 $ 47,000 $ 68,400

Disposition

On July 20, 2003, we completed the sale of eight company restaurants in the Atlanta, Georgia market to
an affiliate of an existing franchisee for $8,000,000. In connection with the sale of these restaurants, we
closed one restaurant in the Atlanta market in June 2003. This transaction did not have a significant
impact on our net earnings for 2003. Actual company restaurant sales included in our consolidated
financial statements for the nine restaurants were approximately $10,300,000 and $18,300,000 for 2003
and 2002, respectively.
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Results of Operations

The following table contains information derived from our consolidated statements of earnings expressed as
a percentage of total operating revenues, except where otherwise noted. Percentages may not add due to
rounding,

Fiscal Year Ended
December 26, December 28, December 29,
2004 2003 2002
(as restated) (as restated)
Revenues:
Company restaurant Sales........ccoceevrirrcereecrrrcnecincinns 87.9% 87.6% 87.4%
Franchise royalties and fees .......cccocvvcnnievercincenciniennns 10.9 11.1 12.3
Other franchise iNCOME ........eocrierrerierenrcercercecncrcnneains 1.2 1.3 0.3
Total operating revenues..........ccvrveveeerreeseersensnennes 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales (as a percentage of company restaurant sales):
26.5% 26.0% 26.6%
325 327 332
25.1 25.1 252
0.3 02 - 0.3
84.4% 84.0% 85.2%
Cost of other franchise income (as a percentage of other
franchise INCOME)......ouireeerirericiice e 105.8% 96.6% 80.8%
General and administrative €Xpenses .........cccceeereererscresnnnaens 9.4 9.6 9.9
Amortization of intangible assets.........cceeererrrereerreneniiiean 0.1 — —
Loss on disposition of restaurants and equipment.................. 0.2 0.1 0.1
Operating CaAMINES ......c.vcceverreerrerreecrorisirmenreeeseressessremsvsrsssans 14.9 154 15.3
Other income (expense):
INVeStMENt INCOME ....covvireermeicei et 0.1 0.2 0.2
INTEreSt EXPEMSE....cvreeecrrcerereetiireree st steetrse st reeeenseenns 0.1) 0.2) (0.3)
Impairment of Chevys note receivable...........cccccenneeen. — 0.9 —
Other INCOME......correrirrerrrreerecrtiiresereeeresansereesesesbsaesens 0.3 0.4 —
Total other income (EXPENSE).........cveeveerrecrenicnenns 0.3 (0.5) —
Earnings before inCome taxes .........cooveveeveeererierernncerereececcns 152 14.9 152
INCOME LAXES ..ottt e ee e nsains 5.2 5.4 5.5
NEt CAIMUNES ..vcevereverercierereetriereescereeseensssnsseesassreseansencsases 10.0% 9.5% 9.7%
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Fiscal Year Ended December 26. 2004 Compared With Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2003

Company Restaurant Sales. Total company restaurant ‘sales ‘increased $109,640,000 (13%) from
$867,158,000 in 2003 to $976,798,000 in 2004. Company restaurant openings and increases in weighted
average weekly sales contributed approximately 8% and 3%, respectively, of the increase in total
company restaurant sales in 2004. The acquisitions of 10 restaurants in Southern California in April 2004
and 11 restaurants in Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, and Missouri in late March 2003 contributed
approximately 3% of the increase in company restaurant sales. These increases were offset by 1% due to
the sale of eight restaurants in the Atlanta, Georgia market in July 2003.

Comparable restaurant sales at company restaurants increased by 3.8% in 2004. Weighted average
weekly sales at company restaurants increased 3.4% from $45,000 in 2003 to $46,536 in 2004. These
increases were due primarily to increases in guest traffic and in the average guest check resulting from
menu price increases of approximately 1.7% in 2004. In addition, a portion of the increase resulted from
the implementation of our Carside To Go™ initiative. Carside To Go™ sales mix increased from 7.1% in
2003 to 9.3% in 2004.

Franchise Royalties and Fees. Franchise royalties and fees increased $11,617,000 (11%) from
$109,604,000 in 2003 to $121,221,000 in 2004 due primarily to the increased number of franchise
restaurants operating during 2004 as compared to 2003 and increases in comparable franchise restaurant
sales. Weighted average weekly sales and franchise comparable restaurant sales each increased by 5.2% in

2004.

Other Franchise Income. Other franchise income increased $468,000 (4%) from $13,147,000 in 2003 to
$13,615,000 in 2004 due primarily to revenues recognized for information technology products and
services provided to certain franchisees.

Cost of Company Restaurant Sales. Food and beverage costs increased from 26.0% in 2003 to 26.5% in
2004. This increase was due to higher commodity costs which impacted our cost of company restaurant
sales by approximately 0.9% and higher food costs related to our menu promotions. This increase was
partially offset by the impact of menu price increases, operational improvements resulting from our supply
chain management initiatives and better food cost control.

Labor costs decreased from 32.7% in 2003 to 32.5% in 2004. In 2004, labor costs were unfavorably
impacted by higher management and hourly labor wage rates, higher workers’ compensation and group
insurance costs and higher costs related to the addition of dedicated Carside To Go™ hourly labor at most
of our restaurants beginning in the second half of 2003. These increases were offset by lower management
incentive compensation and higher sales volumes which favorably impacted management costs.

Direct and océupancy costs were 25.1% in both 2003 and 2004. Direct and occupancy costs were favorably
impacted by higher sales volumes at company restaurants which were offset by higher packaging costs as a
result of increased To Go™ sales volumes and higher credit card usage fees.

Cost of Other Franchise Income. Cost of other franchise income increased $1,704,000 (13%) from
$12,697,000 in 2003 to $14,401,000 in 2004 due primarily to the franchisee portion of the inventory
impairment of approximately $1,600,000 (see Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements).

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses decreased from 9.6% in 2003

to 9.4% in 2004 as a result of the absorption of general and administrative expenses over a larger revenue
base and lower incentive compensation. This decrease was partially offset by higher depreciation
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expense related to our new information systems, higher compensation expense due to staffing levels and
costs associated with compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Other Income. Other income decreased $165,000 from $3,722,000 in 2003 to $3,557,000 in 2004.
Significant items causing fluctuations between 2004 and 2003 are as follows: In 2004, we recorded
$1,600,000 in resolution of certain previously disclosed long-running international franchise disputes. In
addition, we recorded $600,000 of income for final consideration related to the sale of 12 restaurants in
Philadelphia in 1999. In 2003, we recognized $1,600,000 of income related to collection from a previous
financing agreement. In addition, we recorded $1,200,000 of income for additional consideration related
to the sale of 12 restaurants in Philadelphia in 1999.

Impairment of Chevys Note Receivable. In June 2003, Chevys announced the sale of the majority of its
restaurants. Subsequent to the announcement, we received Chevys’ audited financial statements for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. During 2003, we fully impaired the principal and accrued interest
of approximately $8,800,000. In October 2003, Chevys Inc. filed a voluntary petition to reorganize under
Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. In December 2004, the U.S. Bankruptcy Court approved
Chevys’ reorganization plan.

Income Taxes. The effective income tax rate, as a percentage of éarnings before income taxes, decreased
from 36.0% in 2003 to 34.2% in 2004 due to a reduction in state and local income taxes.

Fiscal Year Ended December 28. 2003 Compared With Fiscal Year Ended December 29, 2002

Company Restaurant Sales. Total company restaurant sales increased $142,542,000 (20%) from
$724,616,000 in 2002 to $867,158,000 in 2003. Company restaurant openings and weighted average
weekly sales contributed approximately 9% and 5%, respectively, of the increase in total company
restaurant sales in 2003. The acquisition of 21 franchise restaurants in the Washington D.C. area in
November 2002 and 11 restaurants in Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, and Missouri in late March 2003
contributed approximately 8% of the increase in company restaurant sales. These increases were partially
offset by the sale of 8 restaurants in the Atlanta, Georgia market in July 2003.

Comparable restaurant sales at company restaurants increased by 5.2% in 2003. Weighted average
weekly sales at company restaurants increased 4.6% from $43,019 in 2002 to $45,000 in 2003. These
increases were due primarily to increases in guest traffic and in the average guest check resulting from
our food promotions. In addition, a portion of the increase resulted from the implementation of our To
Go initiative and menu price increases of approximately 1.5% in 2003. In November 2003, we completed
the implementation of our Carside To Go™ program in all company restaurants where practicable. To
Go sales mix increased from 5.0% of company restaurant sales in 2002 to 7.1% of company restaurant
sales in 2003.

Franchise Royalties and Fees. Franchise royalties and fees increased $7,424,000 (7%) from $102,180,000
in 2002 to $109,604,000 in 2003 due primarily to the increased number of franchise restaurants operating
during 2003 as compared to 2002 and increases in comparable restaurant sales. Weighted average weekly
sales and franchise comparable restaurant sales increased 3.3% and 3.7%, respectively, in 2003.

Other Franchise Income. Other franchise income increased from $2,688,000 in 2002 to $13,147,000 in
2003 due primarily to an increase of $10,200,000 in revenues recognized related to the franchise premium
amounts billed by the captive insurance company, which was formed in September 2002. Franchise
premiums are recognized in other franchise income ratably over the policy year.
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Cost of Company Restaurant Sales. Food and beverage costs decreased from 26.6% in 2002 to 26.0% in
2003. This decrease was due to menu price increases and operational improvements resulting from our
supply chain management initiatives.

Labor costs decreased from 33.2% in 2002 to 32.7% in 2003. This decrease was due to lower hourly costs
due to higher sales volume at company restaurants and was partially offset by higher costs related to the
addition of dedicated To Go hourly labor at most of our restaurants during the second half of 2003 and
higher workers’ compensation costs.

Direct and occupancy costs decreased slightly from 25.2% in 2002 to 25.1% in 2003. Direct and occupancy
costs were favorably impacted by lower rent expense and depreciation expense, as a percentage of sales, and
was partially offset by higher insurance costs and higher packaging costs relating to our To Go initiative.

Cost of Other Franchise Income. Cost of other franchise income increased from $2,173,000 in 2002 to
$12,697,000 in 2003 due primarily to an increase in costs of $10,260,000 related to the operation of our
captive insurance company, which was formed in September 2002.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses decreased from 9.9% in 2002
t0 9.6% in 2003 as a result of the absorption of general and administrative expenses over a larger revenue
base. This decrease was partially offset by higher depreciation expense related to our new information
systems and increased incentive compensation.

Impairment of Chevys Note Receivable. In June 2003, Chevys announced the sale of the majority of its
restaurants. Subsequent to the announcement, we received Chevys’ audited financial statements for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. During the fiscal quarter ended June 29, 2003, we fully impaired
the principal and accrued interest of approximately $8,800,000. In October 2003, Chevys Inc. filed a
voluntary petition to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.

Other Income. Other income increased $3,424,000 from $298,000 in 2002 to $3,722,000 in 2003.
Significant items causing fluctuations between 2003 and 2002 are as follows: In 2003, we recognized
$1.600,000 of income related to collection from a previous financing agreement. In addition, we recorded
$1,200,000 of income for additional consideration related to the sale of 12 restaurants in Philadelphia in
1999. In 2002, we recognized $500,000 of additional consideration related to the sale of 12 restaurants in
Philadelphia in 1999.

Income Taxes. The effective income tax rate, as a percentage of earnings before income taxes, decreased
from 36.2% in 2002 to 36.0% in 2003 due to a reduction in state and local income taxes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of liquidity is cash provided by operations. Our need for capital resources historically
has resulted from the construction and acquisition of restaurants, the repurchase of our common shares
and investment in information technology systems. In the past, we have obtained capital through public
stock offerings, debt financing, and our ongoing operations. Cash flows from our ongoing operations
include cash generated from company and franchise operations, credit from trade suppliers, real estate
lease financing, and landlord contributions to leasehold improvements. We have also used our common
stock as consideration in the acquisition of restaurants. In addition, we have assumed debt or issued new
debt in connection with certain mergers and acquisitions. The following table presents a summary of our
cash flows for the last three fiscal years (in thousands):

28




2004 2003 2002
(asrestated)  (as restated)

Net cash provided by operating activities......... $ 190,605 $ 175,889 $ 132,633
Net cash used by investing activities ............... (134,055) (105,174) (98,645)
Net cash used by financing activities............... (63,775) (68,017) (40,867)
Net increase (decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents..........cccc.oeeuruenrercncrunnen. $ (7,225) $ 2,698 $ (6,879)

Capital expenditures were $64,874,000 in 2002 (excluding the acquisition of 21 franchise restaurants),
$82,562,000 in 2003 (excluding the acquisition of 11 franchise restaurants), and $104,620,000 in 2004
(excluding the acquisition of ten franchise restaurants and lease acquisition costs). In 2005, we currently
expect to open at least 40 company restaurants, and capital expenditures excluding franchise acquisitions
are expected to be between $140,000,000 and $150,000,000 including the potential costs to acquire and
re-open up to eight company restaurants that were closed in 2004 by a former franchisee in Memphis,
Tennessee.

These expenditures will primarily be for the development of new restaurants, refurbishment and capital
replacement for existing restaurants and the enhancement of information systems. Because we expect to
continue to purchase a portion of our sites, the amount of actual capital expenditures will be dependent
upon, among other things, the proportion of leased versus owned properties. In addition, if we open more
restaurants than we currently anticipate or acquire additional restaurants, our capital requirements will
increase accordingly.

On April 26, 2004, we completed our acquisition of the operations and assets of ten Applebee’s
restaurants located in Southern California for approximately $13,800,000 in cash. Our financial
statements reflect the results of operations for these restaurants subsequent to the date of acquisition. In
addition, we acquired six restaurant leases for approximately $4,900,000 in cash and acquired the
exclusive right to operate Applebee’s restaurants in the Memphis, Tennessee market from a former
franchisee for approximately $2,800,000 in cash in 2004.

On July 20, 2003, we completed the sale of eight company restaurants in the Atlanta, Georgia market to
an affiliate of an existing franchisee for $8,000,000. In connection with the sale of these restaurants, we
closed one restaurant in the Atlanta market in June 2003.

On March 24, 2003, we acquired the operations and assets of 11 Applebee’s restaurants located in
Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky and Missouri for $21,800,000 in cash and $1,400,000 in assumed debt from a
franchisee. The total cash payment included $20,800,000 paid at closing, approximately $200,000 paid as
a deposit in 2002 and approximately $800,000 paid in the second quarter of 2003. Our financial
statements reflect the results of operations for these restaurants subsequent to the date of acquisition.

On November 7, 2002, we acquired the operations and assets of 21 Applebee’s restaurants located in the
Washington, D.C. area from a franchisee. Under the terms of the purchase agreement and the agreement
with the franchisee’s secured lender, the total purchase price of the acquisition was $34,350,000. Our
financial statements reflect the results of operations for these restaurants subsequent to the date of
acquisition.

In December 2004, we completed the refinancing of our $150,000,000 unsecured revolving credit facility.
The new bank credit agreement provides for a $150,000,000 five-year unsecured revolving credit facility,
of which $40,000,000 may be used for the issuance of letters of credit. The facility is subject to various
covenants and restrictions which, among other things, require the maintenance of stipulated fixed charge,
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leverage and indebtedness to capitalization ratios, as defined. There is no limit on cash dividends
provided that the declaration and payment of such dividend does not cause a default of any other covenant
contained in the agreement. The facility is subject to standard other terms, conditions, covenants, and
fees. As of December 26, 2004, we are in compliance with the covenants contained in our credit
agreement. As of December 26, 2004, we had borrowings of $30,000,000, standby letters of credit of
$12,000,000 outstanding and approximately $108,000,000 available under our revolving credit facility.
During 2005, we expect to fund operations, capital expansion, any repurchases of common stock, and the
payment of dividends from operating cash flows and borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

Our Board of Directors authorized repurchases of our common stock of up to $75,000,000 and
$80,000,000 in 2002 and 2003, respectively. As of December 28, 2003, we had $99,800,000 remaining
under our prior authorizations. During 2004, we repurchased 3,993,670 shares of our common stock at an
average price of $24.97 for an aggregate cost of $99,700,000. As of December 26, 2004, we had
completed all of the 2002 and 2003 stock repurchase authorizations. In October 2004, our Board of
Directors authorized additional repurchases of up to $150,000,000 beginning in 2005 and approved a
written plan for repurchases of our common stock in the open market in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

As of December 26, 2004, our liquid assets totaled $10,924,000. These assets consisted of cash and cash
equivalents in the amount of $10,642,000 and short-term investments in the amount of $282,000. The
working capital deficit increased slightly from $50,359,000 as of December 28, 2003 to $51,041,000 as of
December 26, 2004. This increase was due primarily to increases in the loss reserve and unearned
premiums related to the captive insurance subsidiary and accounts payable and was partially offset by
increases in inventories and receivables.

We believe that our liquid assets and cash generated from operations, combined with borrowings
available under our credit facility, will provide sufficient funds for capital expenditures, repurchases of
our common stock, the payment of dividends and other such operating activities for the foreseeable
future.

The following table shows our debt amortization schedule, future capital lease commitments (including
principal and interest payments), future operating lease commitments (see operating leases in Note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements) and future purchase obligations as of December 26, 2004 (in
thousands):

Payments due by period
Certain Less than I-3 3-5 More than

Contractual Obligations Total 1 year Years years 5 years
Long-term Debt (excluding capital

lease obligations) ™ ..........cooeveerremrinnn $ 31,546 $ 125 $ 206  $30,090 $ 1,125

Capital Lease Obligations ........c.ccceveeerneene. 9,375 767 1,749 1,730 5,129

Operating Leases.........ccvveeeerreiccarercrneenennn 270,046 24,109 47,007 44,396 154,534

Purchase Obligations - Company®............. 205,519 142,576 47,659 11,335 3,949

Purchase Obligations - Franchise®............ 443,455 286,437 123,831 21,572 11,615

® The amounts for long-term debt are primarily borrowings under our revolving credit facility and exclude interest payments which are variable in nature.

@ The amounts for company purchase obligations include commitments for food items, energy, supplies, severance and employment agreements, and other
miscellaneous commitrnents.

® The amounts for franchise purchase obligations include commitments for food items and supplies made by Applebee’s International, Inc. for our

franchisees. Applebee’s International, Inc. contracts with certain suppliers to ensure competitive pricing. These amounts will only be payable by
Applebee’s Intemnational, Inc. if our franchisees do not meet certain minimum contractual requirements.

30




Other Contractual Obligations

We have outstanding lease guarantees of approximately $37,500,000 as of December 26, 2004 (see Note
17 to the consolidated financial statements). We have not recorded a lability for these guarantees as of
December 26, 2004 or December 28, 2003.

We have severance and employment agreements with certain officers providing for severance payments
to be made in the event the associate resigns or is terminated related to a change in control. The
agreements define the circumstances which will constitute a change in control. If the severance payments
had been due as of December 26, 2004, we would have been required to make payments totaling
approximately $12,700,000. In addition, we have severance and employment agreements with certain
officers which contain severance provisions not related to a change in control. Those provisions would
have required aggregate payments of approximately $6,600,000 if such officers had been terminated as of
December 26, 2004.

In November 2003, we arranged for a third-party financing company to provide up to $75,000,000 to
qualified franchisees for short-term loans to fund remodel investments, subject to our approval. Under
the terms of this financing program, we will provide a limited guarantee pool for the loans advanced
during the three-year period ending December 2006. As of December 26, 2004, there were loans
outstanding to two franchisees for approximately $900,000 under this program.

In May 2004, we arranged for a third-party financing company to provide up to $250,000,000 to qualified
franchisees for loans to fund development of new restaurants through October 2007, subject to our
approval. We will provide a limited guarantee of certain loans advanced under this program. As of
December 26, 2004, there were loans outstanding to two franchisees for approximately $13,600,000
under this program. The fair value of our guarantees under these two financing programs was less than
$100,000 and is recorded in non-current liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet as of December 26,
2004.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No.
(“FIN™) 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities and Interpretation of ARB No. 51.” This
interpretation, which replaces FIN 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” clarifies the
application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” to certain
entities in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do
not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated
financial support. This interpretation is required in financial statements for periods ending after March
15, 2004 for those companies that have yet to adopt the provisions of FIN 46. We adopted FIN 46R in
January 2004 and the initial adoption did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-based Payment,” which
replaces SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and supercedes APB Opinion No.
25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004) requires compensation
costs related to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in the financial statements. With
limited exceptions, the amount of compensation cost will be measured based on the fair value on the grant
date of the equity or liability instruments issued. Compensation cost will be recognized over the period
that an employee provides service for that award. This new Standard will be effective for us beginning in
our third quarter of 2005. We are in the process of evaluating the impact of this Standard on our financial
statements.
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In October 2004, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
on Issue 04-1 “Accounting for Preexisting Relationships between the Parties to a Business Combination”
(“EITF 04-1”). EITF 04-1 requires that a business combination between two parties that have a pre-
existing relationship be evaluated to determine if a settlement of a pre-existing relationship exists. EITF
04-1 also requires that certain reacquired rights (including the rights to the acquirer’s trade name under a
franchise agreement) be recognized as intangible assets apart from goodwill. However, if a contract
giving rise to the reacquired rights includes terms that are favorable or unfavorable when compared to
pricing for current market transactions for the same or similar items, EITF 04-1 requires that a settlement
gain or loss should be measured as the lesser of the amount by which the contract is favorable or
unfavorable to market terms from the perspective of the acquirer or the stated settlement provisions of the
contract available to the counterparty to which the contract is unfavorable. We adopted the provisions of
EITF 04-1 in the fourth quarter of 2004 and the initial adoption did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” section regarding restaurant development, comparable sales, restaurant margin,
general and administrative expenses, capital expenditures, return on equity and financial commitments are
forward-looking and based on current expectations. There are several risks and uncertainties that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those described. These risks include but are not limited to
our ability and the ability of our franchisees to open and operate additional restaurants profitably, the
ability of our franchisees to obtain financing, the continued growth of our franchisees, our ability to
attract and retain qualified franchisees, the impact of intense competition in the casual dining segment of
the restaurant industry, and our ability to control restaurant operating costs which are impacted by market
changes, minimum wage and other employment laws, food costs and inflation. For a more detailed
discussion of the principal factors that could cause actual results to be materially different, you should
read our current report on Form 8-K which we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 9, 2005. We disclaim any obligation to update forward-looking statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk from fluctuations in interest rates and changes in commodity prices. Our
revolving credit facility bears interest either at the bank’s prime rate or LIBOR plus 0.5%, at our option.
As of December 26, 2004, the total amount of debt subject to interest rate fluctuations was $30,000,000.
A 1% change in interest rates would result in an increase or decrease in interest expense of $300,000 per
year. We may from time to time enter into interest rate swap agreements to manage the impact of interest
rate changes on our earnings. Many of the products we purchase are subject to price volatility due to
factors that are outside of our control which may impact supply and demand such as weather and
seasonality. As part of our strategy to moderate this volatility, we have entered into fixed price purchase
commitments.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on Page F-1.




Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

Not applicable.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

As of December 26, 2004, we have evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures, under the supervision and with the participation of the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO™). Based on this evaluation, our
management, including the CEO and CFO, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are
effective.

During our most recent fiscal quarter, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting that occurred that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our

internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of Applebee’s International, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting, pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Our
internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the company’s management and
board of directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Management recognizes that there are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of internal
control, and accordingly, even effective internal control can provide only reasonable assurance with
respect to financial statement preparation and fair presentation. Further, because of changes in
conditions, the effectiveness of internal control may vary over time.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our CEO and CFO, we
assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 26,
2004. In making this assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control—Integrated Framework. Based upon our
assessment, we conclude that, as of December 26, 2004, the company’s internal control over financial
reporting is effective, in all material respects, based upon those criteria.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, issued an attestation report
dated March 29, 2005 on our assessment and on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over
financial reporting, which is included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Applebee’s International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Overland Park, Kansas

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Applebee’s International, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 26, 2004,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in ail material
respects. QOur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision
of, the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar
functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of
the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 26, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
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material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 26, 2004, based on
the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 26,
2004 of the Company and our report dated March 29, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Kansas City, Missouri
March 29, 2005

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.

35




PART I
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

If you would like information about our executive officers, you should read the section entitled
“Executive and Other Senior Officers of the Registrant” in Part 1 of this report. You should read the
information under the caption “Information About the Board of Directors and Executive and Other Senior
Officers” for information on our Board of Directors and audit committee of the Board of Directors and
the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” for information regarding our
Section 16(a) ownership compliance located in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on or about May 12, 2005. We incorporate that information in this document by
reference.

Our Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Conduct for all associates and directors. A copy of this
document is available on our website at www.applebees.com, free of charge under the Investors section.
We will satisfy any disclosure requirements under Item 5.05 on Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or
waiver from, any provision of the Code with respect to our principal executive officer, principal financial
officer, principal accounting officer and persons performing similar functions by disclosing the nature of
such amendment or waiver on our website or in a report on Form 8-K.

Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Eric L. Hansen, a member of the audit committee and an
independent director, is an audit committee financial expert, as defined under 401(h) of Regulation S-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

If you would like information about our executive compensation, you should read the information under
the caption “Executive Compensation” and “Information About the Board of Directors and Executive and
Other Senior Officers” in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on or
about May 12, 2005. We incorporate that information in this document by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

If you would like information about the stock owned by our management and certain large stockholders
and information about our equity compensation plans, you should read the information under the caption
“Stock Ownership of Officers, Directors and Major Stockholders” and “Equity Compensation Plan
Information” in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on or about May
12, 2005. We incorporate that information in this document by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

If you would like information about certain transactions which we have completed or certain relationships
which we have entered into, you should read the information under the caption “Certain Transactions™ in
the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on or about May 12, 2005. We
incorporate that information in this document by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

If you would like information about fees paid to our auditors, you should read the information under the
caption “Fees and Services of Deloitte & Touche LLP” in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
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Stockholders to be held on or about May 12, 2005. We incorporate that information in this document by
reference.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) List of documents filed as part of this report:
1. Financial Statements:

The financial statements are listed in the accompanying “Index to Consolidated Financial
Statements” on Page F-1.

2. Financial Statement Schedules:
None.
3. Exhibits:

The exhibits filed with or incorporated by reference in this report are listed on the Exhibit
Index beginning on page E-1.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL, INC.
Date: March 30, 2005 By: /s/ Lloyd L. Hill

Lloyd L. Hill
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWN TO ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Lloyd L. Hill and Rebecca R. Tilden, and each of them, his true and lawful
attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name,
place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this Form 10-K, and to file the same,
with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact or his substitute or substitutes,
may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By: /s/ Lloyd L. Hill Date:  March 30, 2005

Lloyd L. Hill

Director, Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer

(principal executive officer)

By: /s/ Steven K. Lumpkin Date:  March 30, 2005

Steven K. Lumpkin

Director, Executive Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer
(principal financial officer)

By: /s/ Beverly O. Elving Date: March 30, 2005

Beverly O. Elving
Vice President and Controller
(principal accounting officer)
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By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

/s/ Erline Belton

Erline Belton
Director

/s/ Douglas R. Conant

Douglas R. Conant
Director

/s/ D. Patrick Curran

D. Patrick Curran
Director

/s/ Eric L. Hansen

Eric L. Hansen
Director

/s/ Mark S. Hansen

Mark S. Hansen
Director

/st Jack P. Helms

Jack P. Helms
Director

/s/ Burton M. Sack

Burton M. Sack
Director

/s/ Michael A. Volkema

Michael A. Volkema
Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Applebee’s International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Overland Park, Kansas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Applebee’s International, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003, and the related
consolidated statements of earnings, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years
in the period ended December 26, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight .
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. ‘

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 26, 2004,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 26, 2004, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March
29, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE, LLP

Kansas City, Missouri
March 29, 2005




APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share amounts)

December 26, December 28,
2004 2003
(as restated)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eQUIVAIEDLS .........c.ceveeverminiinrneerireeseeeeeinsenesesesssesesenssessssssesesene $ 10,642 $ 17,867
Short-term investments, at Market VAIUE ......ccccvvevereveenivennsesessseresasecesssensessssnssssssssssscssesennas 282 27
Receivables, net of alloOWanCe .........c..coceivevrreneiiiirecnectere e et este et reenaene 39,152 31,721
Receivables related to captive insurance SubSIdIArY .........oovevveverernercrsrmreescnenerreesreceeeerneens 2,566 450
Inventories............... 35,936 20,799
Prepaid INCOME taXeS.........comerrercerrcercmenereenraeeieenesenena : — 5,800
Prepaid and other current assets ...........oooeverrecenenee 12,079 11,862
Total current assets .....coeeeeveeemeeeererereneereenerieraenes . 100,657 88,526
Property and EqUIPIENT, NET.....c.cvvcveveieeeecereaeeecsesese e seeraerere s sssssa st esesstasecessesescassesesessss 486,548 426,709
GOOAWILL.....corriricerircrctnresrctnme st e te s sre e erres s resaenenebensaners 116,344 105,326
Restricted assets related to captive insurance subsidiary ........... 17,386 10,763
Other intangible assets, Net.....c.coverrveeevireeerererenioeresesrerenssesens eeereeraeteenena tesaases st anatane 8,524 1,137
Other assets, NEL......ccccccieiiieeeieccrertecessre s eresrseessensereensessessenes . 24,972 18,617
$ 754,431 $ 651,078
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt .......ccceeevmvermnecenninvinrnns $ 222 $ 192
ACCOUNLS PAYADLE .....coveeireirierrirrireeriectemeecceseereresssssnsserestsnnreneses 42,830 37,633
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities ......cc.ococevevirirnirvenens . 89,064 91,940
Loss reserve and unearned premiums related to captive insurance subsidiary .........ccccerveenne 12,137 5,257
Accrued dividends..... 4,867 3,863
Accrued income taxes ... 2,578 —
Total current liabilities 151,698 138,885
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt — less CUITENE POTHON ....c.covrueereceencrcietnnierriee e screesesnssesestneasens 35,472 20,670
Deferred income taxes 28,995 4,193
Other non-current liabilities 41,539 34,187
Total non-current liabilities 106,006 59,050
TOtal HADIHLES ...cvververreeraenrreerris e rirsresecrerseesesessesesanssssneraessene s s sanssessnsessssesmsonssssssnsnen 257,704 197,935
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11, 12 and 17)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock — par value $0.01 per share: authorized - 1,000,000 shares;
N0 SHATES ISSUR ......oveirirrierrineeee it re e este et essestste e sr et ers st e besssenenasss s emsscatsnsnasan — —
Common stock — par value $0.01 per share: authorized — 125,000,000 shares;
issued — 108,503,243 shares 1,085 1,085
Additional paid-in capital.........cc.coeoiioiiiceeece, 220,897 201,951
Uneamned COMPENSALIONL .......coveeeevereernereerersrsessessesssssnrensassssssesessessesessersesesseses (1,924) (1,377)
Retained earmings.......ococeeecrceeeursemsreeceeserercserernas et 623,315 517,365
843,373 719,024
Treasury stock — 27,375,044 shares in 2004 and 25,715,767 shares in 2003, at cost ............. (346,646) (265,881)
Total stockholders’ equity 496,727 453,143
$ 754431 $ 651,078

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Year Ended
December 26, December 28, December 29,
2004 2003 2002
(as restated) (as restated)
Revenues:
Company restaurant sales . $ 976,798 $ 867,158 $ 724616
Franchise royalties and fees 121,221 109,604 102,180
Other franchise income... 13,615 13,147 2,688
Total operating revenues 1,111,634 989,909 829,484
Cost of company restaurant sales:
Food and beverage..........coceovcciennnne 259,134 225,346 192,424
LaDOT ...ttt ettt as st sre s st as s ereae e e 317,659 283,762 240,258
Direct and OCCUPANCY .....cocervererrcererenmrrmrerre e csesreseerenanensesesssses 244,707 217,393 182,376
Pre-0opening EXpense . ......cuveeivrecrrereecnrerineent et ese e sisiine 3,025 2,020 2,044
Total cost of company restaurant sales ... 824,525 728,521 617,102
Cost of other franchise iNCOME..........cccoeeereeeirieirieeciere e 14,401 12,697 2,173
General and administrative expenses 104,810 94,951 82,100
Amortization of Intangible aSsets .........ccceeiirrrereereretenerrernrenrceersreeesenne 663 364 381
Loss on disposition of restaurants and equipment. 1,955 699 1,138
Operating earnings ...... 165,280 152,677 126,590
Other income (expense);
Investment income 1,284 1,554 1,498
Interest expense ..... (1,626) (1,733) (2,168)
Impairment of Chevys note receivable (Note 5) .......ccceceermerereriiennn — (8,803) —
Oher iNCOME ........oovvreeeeirietere et ste et see s ess s s esese e sessaseaes 3,557 3,722 298
Total other income (EXPENSE) ...cuvveririrreerirererenerenieereresesesnssens 3,215 (5,260) (372)
Earnings before inCOME tAXES......covereeerirenceinirceeceriereeennsrecessesseessasesasssses 168,495 147,417 126,218
Income taxes . 57,630 53,068 45,691
Net earnings $ 110,865 $ 94349 $ 80,527
Basic net earnings per common share $ 1.36 $ 1.14 3 0.97
Diluted net earnings per common share $ 1.33 3 1.10 3 0.94
Basic weighted average shares outstanding......... 81,528 82,944 83,407
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding.........cccocoevvevrenivevscsneens 83,600 85,409 85,382

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Common Stock Paid-Iln Retained Comprehensive Uneamned Treasury Stockholders®
Shares Amount Capital Eamings Income (Loss) C Stock Equity
Balance, December 30, 2001

(as previously reported) 108,503 $ 1,085 § 181,303 § 354,588 $ 14 $ (501) § (211306) § 325,183
Curnulative effect on prior years of restatement ’

(568 NOte 22)..cecmmcverrerrcercncrsersereneessessesnanse — — — (4,880) — — — (4,880)
Balance, December 30, 2001 (as restated).............. 108,503 1,085 181,303 349,708 14 (501) (211,306) 320,303
Comprehensive income:

Net earnings (as restated)................... — — — 80,527 — — — 80,527

Change in unrealized gain on short-term

investments, net of iNCOME tAXES .....cvvvrerrrrnreense — — — — 2 — — 2
Total comprehensive INCOME ..........ooeevvrereuverrcenriernens — — — 80,527 2 — — 80,529
Purchases of treasury stock — — — — — — (26,113) (26,113)

Dividends declared on common stock, $0.04
per share .. — — — (3,323) — — — (3,323)

Stock options exercised and rel — — 2,796 — — — 4,495 7,291

Shares issued under employee benefit plans........... — — 2,741 —_ — — 2,129 4,870

Restricted shares awarded under equity

incentive plans — — 765 — — (757) 493 501

Amortization of unearned compensation

relating to restricted shares.........ccccrrrerrreerernnnss — — — — — 659 — 659
Net repayments of notes receivable from officers —
fOr StOCk SAlES.....oveereev et s rerenen — — 517 — — —_ 517

Dividends paid for fractional shares .....co..eusivsecrsnss — — — (33) — — — (33)
Balance, December 29, 2002 (as restated)............... 108,503 1,085 188,122 426,879 16 {399) (230,302) 385,201
Comprehensive income:

Net earnings (as restated).......co.ccceverrrerconeereiscnnnes — —_— — 94,349 — — — 94,349

Change in unrealized gain on short-term —

investments, net of income taxes........ccccc.vec.e.. — — — —_— (16) — (16)

Total comprehensive inCOME .......ceereeerererernee. — — — 94,349 (16) — — 94,333

Purchases of treasury stock.......ccouevverernvrrniesennee — — — — — — (49,757) (49,757)
Dividends declared on common stock, $0.05

PEI SHATE ..ottt seesesasreseten — — — (3,863) — — — (3,863)

Stock options exercised and related tax benefit ...... — —_ 9,884 — — — 11,898 21,782

Shares issued under employee bepefit plans........... — — 2,554 — — — 1,732 4,286

Restricted shares awarded under equity

incentive plan, net of cancellations.............cceeenee — — 1,292 — — (1,789) 548 51
Amortization of unearned compensation relating
to restricted Shares.........oovecceeeceenrccereecencenenee — —_ — — 1,011 — 1,011

Net repayments of notes receivable from officers
for S1OCK SALES ....vucieserseriannemnrenrenrerrireseisessenss — — 99 — — — — 99
Balance, December 28, 2003 (as restated) ......ccveunsee 108,503 1,085 201,951 517,365 — 1,377 (265,881) 453,143

Net CAMINES.....covrrerrrrererctrreeeriresereescsesrssesserssesenens —_— — — 110,865 —_ — — 110,865

Purchases of treasury stock.........c.ccooeevniecreneennes —_ — — — — — (99,723) (99,723)

Dividends declared on common stock, $0.06

PET ShACE ...cvevuiereirreierer et enevenas —_ — — (4,867) — — — (4,867)

Stock options exercised and related tax benefit ...... — — 13,756 — — — 16,200 29,956

Shares issued under employee benefit plans — — 3,747 — — — 2,232 5,979

Restricted shares awarded under equity

incentive plans, net of cancellations ................... — — 1,443 — — (1,969} 526 —
Amortization of unearned compensation relating
to restricted shares.........cc.......... — —_ — —_ 1,422 — 1,422

Dividends paid for fractional shares ...........cccecerenes — — — (48) — — — (48)

Balance, December 26, 2004 108,503 § 1,085  § 220,897 $ 623,315 § — $ (1,924) § (346,646) § 496,727
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See notes to consolidated financial statements.

APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)
Fiscal Year Ended
December 26, December 28, December 29,
2004 2003 2002
(as restated) (as restated)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NEt CAIMUNES. ceomreeermrenrermrereereraeeeineesseresaniseseneas $ 110,865 $ 94349 $ 80527
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
provided by operating, activities:

Depreciation and amortization ...........ceeevecreienienrseerenesseeseserveresseressscene 46,051 41,082 35,454
Amortization of intangible aSSets ..........cooveivriininiinminssss s 663 364 381
Amortization of uneamned compensation..........ccooueerrercrenescrncssernnens 1,422 1,011 659
Other amMOTtZALION .....couveeereeeccertrserertrirssrisraes st ens 309 195 195
Inventory impairment 2,000 — —
Deferred income tax provision 25,313 2,436 1,869
Gain on sale of investments — (24) —
Loss on disposition of restaurants and equipment 1,955 699 1,138
Impairment of Chevys note receivable — 8,803 —
Income tax benefit from exercise of stock OpHODS......cccceuerreericcraenens 10,459 7,606 1,905
Changes in assets and liabilities (exclusive of effects of acquisitions or
dispositions):
Receivables ......cccoovecrvnnvcrnecnes (7,218) (5,733) (1,355)
Receivables related to captive insurance subsidiary.......ccoccoveeeccevecnnee (2,116) 1,353 (1,803)
10175 1100) o 13- SO (16,925) (9,139) (1,067)
INCOME LAXES ....cececececcenererenccect ettt ettt et et sesesennes 8.378 (798) (5,981)
Prepaid and other current assets ............cococoirvieneneresenncreneeseeeesseeeens (665) 1,063 653
Accounts payable... 5,197 10,233 5,283
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities ...........ccrveevincereereiisnnianens (3,542) 14,057 11,901
Loss reserve and unearned premiums related to captive insurance
SUDSIQIATY oottt et ne e reee et nesanses 6,880 3,454 1,803
Other non-current liabilities 2,702 4,965 (217)
Other ........cccceveuceee. (1,123) (87) 1,288
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES................... 190,605 175,889 132,633
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment (104,620) (82,562) (64,874)
Restricted assets related to captive insurance subsidiary ........ccooeveveerceeccune (6,623) (10,763) —
Acquisition of restaurants...................... (13,817) (21,557) (34,250)
Lease acquiSition COSLS ........cceereererceersenrrrisersnsnncnas (4,875) — —_—
Acquisition of other intangible asset (2,809) — —
Proceeds from sale of restaurants and equipment .. 66 9,228 279
Purchases of short-term Investments ...........cc.veceeeeierennieneseisreenssesseenesenaes — — (150)
Maturities and sales of short-term investments.............ccoooveeirerenecncenancnens (253) 480 350
Other investing activities . (1,124) — —
NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (134,055) (105,174) (98,645)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of treasury stock (99,723) (49,757) (26,113)
Dividends paid. (3,911) (3,323) (3,010)
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options........ccceevvevereenenee 19,497 14,176 5,386
Shares issued under employee benefit plans 5,979 4,286 4,870
Net long-term debt proceeds (payments) 14,832 (33,399) (22,000)
Deferred financing costs relating to issuance of long-term debt (449) — —
NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES .........ccccouvuvrrrurrenns (63,775) (68,017) (40,867)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. ........ (7,225) 2,698 {6,879)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period.......c.cocoevrereererrucunne 17,867 15,169 22,048
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period.........cccovevverrrermreerenennrenens $ 10,642 $ 17,867 $ 15,169




See notes to consolidated financial statements.

APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - (Continued)

(in thousands)
Fiscal Year Ended
December 26, December 28, December 29,
2004 2003 2002

(as restated) (as restated)
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH

FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:
INCOMIE tAXES....coeeemeerrerrererienseresernssersanensans $ 12,428 $ 45,557 $ 44983
INETESE evvereereercreeceeerce e e s e eeeseneasans $ 1,056 $ 1,079 $ 1,532

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

We issued restricted common stock, net of forfeitures, of $1,945,000 in 2004, $1,842,000 in 2003 and
$1,258,000 in 2002.

In 2002, we entered into a rabbi trust agreement to protect the assets of the nonqualified deferred
compensation plan for certain of our associates. The plan investments are included in other assets and the
offsetting obligation is included in other non-current liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets. We
had non-cash increases in these balances of $3,881,000, $3,448,000 and $2,425,000 in 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

We made matching contributions in shares of our common stock to a profit sharing plan and trust
established in accordance with Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Our contributions under this
plan were $1,308,000 in 2004, $1,044,000 in 2003 and $1,092,000 in 2002.

On March 24, 2003, we assumed a loan of approximately $1,400,000 in connection with the acquisition
of 11 restaurants.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-7




APPLEBEE’S INTERNATIONAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Applebee’s International, Inc. and our subsidiaries develop, franchise and operate casual dining
restaurants under the name “Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar.” As of December 26, 2004, there
were 1,671 Applebee’s restaurants. Franchisees operated 1,247 of these restaurants and 424 restaurants
were company operated. These restaurants were located in 49 states and 12 countries outside of the

United States.

On September 20, 2002, we formed Neighborhood Insurance, Inc., a regulated Vermont corporation and a
wholly-owned subsidiary, as a captive insurance company. Neighborhood Insurance, Inc. was established
to provide Applebee’s International, Inc. and qualified franchisees with workers’ compensation and
general liability insurance (see Note 13).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include our accounts and the accounts
of our wholly-owned subsidiaries. We have eliminated all intercompany profits, transactions and
balances.

Fiscal year: Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday of the calendar year. The fiscal years ended
December 26, 2004, December 28, 2003 and December 29, 2002 each contained 52 weeks. These fiscal
years will be referred hereafter as 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Financial instruments: Our financial instruments as of December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003
consist of cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts receivable and long-term debt, excluding
capitalized lease obligations. The carrying amount of cash equivalents and accounts receivable (including
receivables related to the captive insurance subsidiary) approximates fair value because of the short
maturity of those instruments. We based the carrying amount of short-term investments on quoted market
prices. We based the fair value of our long-term debt, excluding capitalized lease obligations, on
quotations made on similar issues. The fair value of these financial instruments approximates the carrying
amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets.

Investments: We have certificates of deposit that are included in short-term investments and auction rate
securities that are included in restricted assets related to captive insurance subsidiary in our consolidated
balance sheets. We determine gains and losses from sales using the specific identification method. As of
December 26, 2004, we have classified all investments as available-for-sale,

Inventories: We state inventories at the lower of cost, using the first-in, first-out method, or market. We

record inventory reserves for obsolescence and shrinkage based upon inventory turnover trends, historical
experience and the specific identification method.
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Property and equipment: We report property and equipment at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the lease term, as defined in operating
leases below, or the estimated useful life of the related asset. The general ranges of original depreciable
lives are as follows: ‘

. Buildings 20 years
. Leasehold improvements 15-20 years
. Furniture and equipment 2-7 years

We record capitalized interest in connection with the development of new restaurants and amortize it over
the estimated useful life of the related asset. We capitalized $189,000 in interest costs during 2004,
$264,000 during 2003 and $300,000 during 2002.

Software costs: In accordance with American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Statement of
Position 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use,”
costs incurred in connection with the development of internal-use software are capitalized and amortized
over the expected useful life of the asset.

Goodwill: Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair market value of net assets we have acquired.
Beginning in 2002, we ceased amortization of our goodwill in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (see Note 9).

Impairment of long-lived assets: We review restaurant property and equipment for impairment on a
restaurant by restaurant basis using historical cash flows as well as current estimates of future cash flows
and/or appraisals.

We review other long-lived assets annually and when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of the asset may not be recoverable. The recoverability is assessed in most instances by comparing
the carrying value to its undiscounted cash flows.

Other intangible assets: Other intangible assets consist of franchise interest and rights, lease acquisition
costs and other intangible assets related to the acquisition of a former franchise territory (see below).
Franchise interest and rights represent allocations of the purchase price of our 1988 acquisition of the
Applebee’s concept to the restaurants we acquired and the franchise agreements that we assumed based
on an independent valuation. We amortize the allocated costs over the estimated life of the restaurants or
the franchise agreements on a straight-line basis ranging from 7 to 20 years.

Lease acquisition costs represent amounts paid to acquire six restaurant leases which will be converted to
Applebee’s restaurants. These lease acquisition costs are being amortized over the remaining lease
agreements.

In 2004, we acquired the exclusive right to operate Applebee’s restaurants in the Memphis, Tennessee
market from a former franchisee. This intangible asset has an indefinite life and accordingly, will not be
amortized but tested for impairment at least annually. In connection with this acquisition, we entered into
a 4-year noncompete agreement with the former franchise principals. This noncompete agreement is
being amortized over the life of the agreement.

Gift cards: We record a liability in the period in which a gift card is issued and proceeds are received.
As gift cards are redeemed, this liability is reduced and revenue is recognized as a sale.
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Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions. These estimates, which are frequently made in consultation with certain third-party
advisors, include, but are not limited to, estimates for legal actions and general liability, workers’
compensation and health insurance, long-term incentives, and the collectibility of receivables.

We are periodically involved in various legal actions arising in the normal course of business. We are
required to assess the probability of any adverse judgments as well as the potential range of loss. We
determine the required accruals after a review of the facts of each legal action.

The estimated liability for general liability, workers’ compensation and health insurance is established
based upon historical claims data and third-party actuarial estimates of settlement costs for incurred
claims. We recognized expense of $25,116,000 in 2004, $20,136,000 in 2003 and $15,069,000 in 2002
related to these types of insurance in our consolidated financial statements. Unanticipated changes in
these factors may require us to revise our estimates. :

We have various long-term associate incentive compensation plans which require us to make estimates to
determine our liability based upon projected performance of plan criteria. If actual performance against
the criteria differs from our estimates in the future, we will be required to adjust our liability accordingly.

We continually assess the collectibility of our franchise receivables. We establish our allowance for bad
debts based on several factors, including historical collection experience, the current economic
environment and other specific information available to us at the time. The allowance for bad debts may
change in the future due to changes in the factors above or other new developments.

Estimates and assumptions used by management affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Franchise royalties and fees: We recognize royalties on a franchisee’s sales in the period in which the
sales are reported to have occurred. We also receive a franchise fee for each restaurant that a franchisee
opens. The recognition of franchise fees is deferred until we have performed substantially all of our
related obligations as franchisor, typically when the restaurant opens. Franchise fees, included in
franchise royalties and fees in the consolidated statements of earnings, totaled $3,096,000 for 2004,
$2,769,000 for 2003 and $2,692,000 for 2002.

Other franchise income: Other franchise income includes insurance premiums from franchisee
participation in our captive insurance program and revenue from information technology products and
services provided to certain franchisees. Income from franchisee premiums and information technology
services is recognized ratably over the related contract period. Income from information technology
products is recognized when the products are installed at the restaurant.

Advertising costs: We recognize company-owned restaurant contributions to the national marketing pool
in the period the contribution accrues. We expense most local advertising costs for company-owned
restaurants as we incur them, but we expense the production costs of advertising the first time the
advertising takes place. Advertising expense related to company-owned restaurants was $46,324,000 for
2004, $41,597,000 for 2003 and $34,877,000 for 2002.

Operating leases: We account for our restaurant and office space leases in accordance with SFAS No.13,

“Accounting for Leases” and other authoritative guidance. We recognize rent expense for our operating
leases, which have escalating rentals over the term of the lease, on a straight-line basis over the initial
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term and those option periods where failure to exercise such options would result in an economic penalty
such that the renewal appears reasonably assured. In addition, the lease term is deemed to commence on
the date we become legally obligated for rent payments. We capitalize the straight-line rent amounts
during the construction period of leased properties. Straight-line rent subsequent to the construction
period and prior to the restaurant opening is recognized as expense. We use a consistent lease term when
calculating depreciation of leasehold improvements, when determining straight-line rent expense and
when determining classification of our leases as either operating or capital. Contingent rents are generally
amounts due as a result of sales in excess of amounts stipulated in certain restaurant leases and are
included in rent expense as they accrue.

Certain of our lease agreements contain tenant improvement allowances, rent holidays, lease premiums,
rent escalation clauses and/or contingent rent provisions. For purposes of recognizing incentives,
premiums, rent holidays and minimum rental expenses on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
leases, we use the date of initial possession to begin amortization, which is generally when we enter the
property and begin to make improvements in preparation of its intended use.

For tenant improvement allowances, we record a deferred rent liability in either other current liabilities or
other non-current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and amortize the deferred rent over the
terms of the leases as reductions to direct and occupancy costs in the consolidated statements of earnings.

Pre-opening expense: We expense direct training and other costs, including rent expense subsequent to
the construction period but prior to restaurant opening, related to opening new or relocated restaurants as
they are incurred, which is typically in the month of opening.

Income taxes: We use the asset and liability method to determine deferred income taxes. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are computed based upon future tax consequences associated with differences
between the financial statement carrying amount and the tax bases of assets and liabilities.

Stock-based compensation: We have adopted the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 148, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.”
The Statement requires prominent disclosures in financial statements regarding the method of accounting
for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. We
account for stock-based compensation awards under the intrinsic method of Accounting Principles Board
(“APB”) Opinion No. 25. Opinion No. 25 requires compensation cost to be recognized based on the
excess, if any, between the quoted market price of the stock at the date of grant and the amount an
employee must pay to acquire the stock. All options awarded under all of our plans are granted with an
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exercise price equal to the fair market value on the date of the grant. The following table presents the
effect on our net earnings and earnings per share had we adopted the fair value method of accounting for
stock-based compensation under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation™ (in
thousands, except for per share amounts).

2004 2003 2002
(as restated) (as restated)
Net earnings, as reported ............occreerecrcerscrerannes $ 110,865 $ 94349 $ 80,527
Add: Stock-based compensation expense
included in net earnings, net of related taxes.. 638 2,354 972
Less: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined under
fair value based methods for all awards,
net of related taXes....oocvvvvicveeeeerevcrreerieerennes 8,555 9,752 6,570
Pro forma net earnings.........c.cceeeveevveeernereseecrnene $ 102,948 $ 86,951 $ 74,929
Basic net earnings per common share,
8S TEPOTLEd. . .erereerererrreeteere e s e nesnensaesns $ 1.36 $ 1.14 $ 0.97
Basic net earnings, per common share,
Pro fOrMA ...c.cvveereerenecereeeete e $ 1.26 $ 1.05 $ 0.90
Diluted net earnings per common share,
S TEPOTLEd.....ceeueereeacreec v eeeeeece e eeaeeeas $ 1.33 $ 1.10 $ 0.94
Diluted net earnings per common share,
PrO fOTMA ..ottt $ 1.23 $ 1.02 3 0.88

The weighted average fair value at date of grant for options granted during 2004, 2003 and 2002 was
$9.84, $7.11 and $6.44 per share, respectively, which, for the purposes of this disclosure, is assumed to be
amortized over the respective vesting period of the grants. The fair value of each option grant is
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted
average assumptions used for grants in 2004, 2003 and 2002: dividend yield of 0.3% for each year;
expected volatility of 41.6%, 44.9% and 46.9%, respectively; risk-free interest rate of 2.7%, 2.8% and
2.5%, respectively; and expected lives of 4.8, 4.9 and 5.2 years, respectively.

Net earnings per share: We compute basic net earnings per share by dividing earnings available to
common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the reporting
period. Diluted net earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if holders of options
or other contracts to issue common stock exercised or converted their holdings into common stock.
Outstanding stock options and equity-based compensation represent the only dilutive effects on weighted
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average shares. The chart below presents a reconciliation between basic and diluted weighted average
shares outstanding and the related net earnings per share. All amounts in the chart, except per share
amounts, are expressed in thousands.

2004 2003 2002
(as restated) (as restated)

NEt CANINES ....cueeueerereeererieeccererssessesessassrsssssnenes $ 110,865 $ 94349 $ 80,527
Basic weighted average shares outstanding......... 81,528 82,944 '83,407
Dilutive effect of stock options and

equity-based compensationt...........ccoecereeerienene. 2,072 2,465 1,975
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding...... 83,600 85,409 85,382
Basic net earnings per common share.................. $ 1.36 $ 1.14 $ 0.97
Diluted net earnings per common share............... $ . 133 $ 1.10 $ 0.94

We excluded stock options with exercise prices greater than the average market price of our common
stock for the applicable periods from the computation of diluted weighted average shares outstanding as
the effect would be anti-dilutive. There were approximately 1,459,000 of these options for 2004, 56,000
options for 2003 and 177,000 options for 2002.

Cash flows: For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, we consider all highly liquid
investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

New accounting pronouncements: In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. (“FIN™) 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities and
Interpretation of ARB No. 51.” This interpretation, which replaces FIN 46, “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities,” clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated
Financial Statements,” to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a
controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities
without additional subordinated financial support. This interpretation is required in financial statements
for periods ending after March 15, 2004 for those companies that have yet to adopt the provisions of FIN
46. We adopted FIN 46R in January 2004 and the initial adoption did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-based Payment,” which
replaces SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and supercedes APB Opinion No.
25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004) requires compensation
costs related to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in the financial statements. With
limited exceptions, the amount of compensation cost will be measured based on the fair value on the grant
date of the equity or liability instruments issued. Compensation cost will be recognized over the period
that an employee provides service for that award. This new Standard will be effective for us beginning in
our third quarter of 2005. We are evaluating the impact of this Standard on our consolidated financial
statements.

In October 2004, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”)
on Issue 04-1 “Accounting for Preexisting Relationships between the Parties to a Business Combination”
(“EITF 04-17). EITF 04-1 requires that a business combination between two parties that have a pre-
existing relationship be evaluated to determine if a settlement of a pre-existing relationship exists. EITF
04-1 also requires that certain reacquired rights (including the rights to the acquirer’s trade name under a
franchise agreement) be recognized as intangible assets apart from goodwill. However, if a contract
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giving rise to the reacquired rights includes terms that are favorable or unfavorable when compared to
pricing for current market transactions for the same or similar items, EITF 04-1 requires that a settlement
gain or loss should be measured as the lesser of the amount by which the contract is favorable or
unfavorable to market terms from the perspective of the acquirer or the stated settlement provisions of the
contract available to the counterparty to which the contract is unfavorable. We adopted the provisions of
EITF 04-1 in the fourth quarter of 2004 and the initial adoption did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications: We have made certain reclassifications to the consolidated financial statements to
conform to the 2004 presentation.

3. Acquisitions

On April 26, 2004, we completed our acquisition of the operations and assets of 10 Applebee’s
restaurants located in Southern California for approximately $13,800,000 in cash. Our financial
statements reflect the results of operations for these restaurants subsequent to the date of acquisition. The
purchase price was allocated to the fair value of property and equipment of $2,500,000, goodwill of
$10,800,000 and other net-assets of approximately $500,000. This transaction did not have a significant
impact on our net earnings for 2004.

On March 24, 2003, we acquired the operations and assets of 11 Applebee’s restaurants located in
Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky and Missouri for $21,800,000 in cash and $1,400,000 in assumed debt from a
franchisee. The total cash payment included $20,800,000 paid at closing, approximately $200,000 paid as
a deposit in 2002 and approximately $800,000 paid in the second quarter of 2003. Our financial
statements reflect the results of operations for these restaurants subsequent to the date of acquisition. The
purchase price of $23,200,000 was allocated to the fair value of property and equipment of $7,900,000,
goodwill of $16,600,000, and other net liabilities of $1,300,000.

On November 7, 2002, we acquired the operations and assets of 21 Applebee’s restaurants located in the
Washington, D.C. area from a franchisee. Under the terms of the purchase agreement and the agreement
with the franchisee’s secured lender, the total purchase price of the acquisition was $34,350,000. Our
financial statements reflect the results of operations for these restaurants subsequent to the date of
acquisition. The purchase price of $34,350,000 has been allocated to the fair value of property and
equipment of $25,200,000, goodwill of $10,200,000 and other net current liabilities of $1,050,000.

The following table is comprised of actual company restaurant sales for the three restaurant acquisitions
above which are included in our consolidated financial statements for each period presented and pro
forma company restaurant sales assuming the acquisitions occurred at the beginning of the preceding year
for each acquisition (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
Actual company restaurant sales
for acquired restaurants.............cceceeeeererieenennnne $ 17600 $ 19,000 $ 6,300
Pro forma company restaurant sales
for acquired restaurants.............ccceeveerevernennnnns $ 26,400 $ 47,000 $ 68,400

4. Disposition
On July 20, 2003, we completed the sale of eight company restaurants in the Atlanta, Georgia market to

an affiliate of an existing franchisee for $8,000,000. In connection with the sale of these restaurants, we
closed one restaurant in the Atlanta market in June 2003. This transaction did not have a significant
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impact on our net earnings for 2003. Actual company restaurant sales included in our consolidated
financial statements for the nine restaurants were approximately $10,300,000 and $18,300,000 for 2003
and 2002, respectively.

5. Impairment of Chevys Note Receivable

In 1999, we received a $6,000,000, 8% subordinated note in connection with the sale of the Rio Bravo
concept to Chevys Holdings, Inc. (“Chevys”) due in 2009. In June 2003, Chevys announced the sale of
the majority of its restaurants. Subsequent to the announcement, we received Chevys’ audited financial
statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. During 2003, we fully impaired the principal
- and interest of approximately $8,800,000. A charge for the impairment of this note is included in our
consolidated statements of earnings for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2003. In October 2003,
Chevys Inc. filed a voluntary petition to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. In
December 2004, the U.S. Bankruptcy Court approved Chevys’ reorganization plan.

6. Inventory Impairment

In the second quarter of 2004, we determined that we had excess inventories of riblets that no longer met
our quality standards. Accordingly, we recorded an inventory impairment of $2,000,000 ($1,300,000 net
of income taxes) in our consolidated financial statements during 2004. The portion of the riblet inventory
impairment related to the company’s historical usage of approximately $400,000 was recorded in food
and beverage cost and the portion related to the franchisee’s historical usage of approximately $1,600,000
was recorded in cost of other franchise income in the consolidated statements of earnings.

7. Receivables

Receivables are comprised of the following (in thousands):

December 26, December 28,

2004 2003
(as restated)
Franchise royalty, advertising and trade receivables.................. $ 28,924 $ 22293
Credit card receivables ....ouoirieeciricierteceeee e 6,509 6,212
Franchise fee receivables........cccvveveivieeeecinriecesierie e v 252 318
ONET c...oevirieierierersere et rvere et sseereenaaseseses e sassessesaneasasesnensans 3,884 3,942
39,569 32,765
Less allowance for bad debts...........ccocveeeeeecrireeeeerereceeeienene 417 1,044
$ 39,152 $ 31,721

The bad debt provision was $99,000 for 2003 and $795,000 in 2002. We did not have a provision for bad
debts for 2004. We had write-offs against the allowance for bad debts of $627,000 during 2004, $71,000
during 2003 and $1,049,000 during 2002.
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8. Prepaid and Other Current Assets

Prepaid and other current assets are comprised of the following (in thousands):

December 26, December 28,

2004 2003
(as restated)
Deferred INCOME tAXES «..ocvvvvvieeeiervererisseesscssssersasssessssonsesssessnses h 7,482 $ 7,993
OUNET a.vvecrreiceriesiesierrreseeiereesnessstaerenseasssessenssnsensassrsesnsaasesssansnnas 4,597 3,869
$ 12,079 $ 11,862

9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In November of 2003 and 2004, we completed the annual goodwill impairment test required under the
provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” We determined that no
impairment existed and as a result, no impairment losses were recorded in 2003 or 2004.

The changes in goodwill are summarized below (in thousands):

December 26, December 28,
2004 2003
Carrying amount, beginning of the year .........cccccoccvinineenrcinee $ 105,326 § 88,715
GoodWill ACQUITEA ....coveeeiereerieereriereeeereeee e eee e reries et rs e cemenas 11,018 16,611
$ 116,344 $ 105,326

Intangible assets subject to amortization pursuant to SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” are summarized below (in thousands):

December 26, 2004
Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Book
Amount Amortization Value

Amortized intangible assets:

Franchise interest and rights........ $ 6,371 $ 5,565 $ 806

Lease acquisition costs................ 4,875 294 4,581

Noncompete agreement............... 350 22 328
Total...corerieeireeeeee e $ 11,596 $ 5,881 $ 5,715

December 28, 2003

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Book
Amount Amortization Value
Amortized intangible assets:
Franchise interest and rights........ $ 6,371 $ 5,234 $ 1,137

In the fourth quarter of 2004, we acquired the exclusive right to operate Applebee’s restaurants in the
Memphis, Tennessee market from a former franchisee group for approximately $2,800,000. This
intangible asset has an indefinite life and accordingly, will not be amortized but tested for impairment at
least annually. In connection with this acquisition,-we entered into a 4-year noncompete agreement with
the former franchise principals which is being amortized over the life of the agreement.
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In the second quarter of 2004, we acquired six restaurant leases which were formerly Ground Round
restaurants for approximately $4,900,000 in cash.

Franchise interest and rights are being amortized over the next two to four years, the lease acquisition
costs are being amortized over the next 8 to 20 years and the noncompete agreement is being amortized

over the next four years.

We expect annual amortization expense for all intangible assets for the next five fiscal years to range
from approximately $400,000 to $900,000.

10. Other Assets

Other assets are comprised of the following (in thousands):

December 26, December 28,
2004 2003

(as restated)

Nonqualified deferred compensation plan
investments (NOte 19)....ccccoiiiiiiirrrnneeec et $ 9,754 $ 5,872
Liquor licenses, Net......ocvereecuieienierenrcreesecerne e esvessesassnesens 5,891 4,420
Minority investment in unaffiliated company, at cost ............... 2,250 2,250
Notes receivable, NEL.......vievvveueireiieeceereee e ceeeeeesre e e saeressanns 1,024 1,011
Deferred financing costs, et ..........coceuverceciniiesiectnernsiceniennns 577 297
OhET ..ottt cse e et s e sessns s e sassnseres e sannnens 5,476 4,767
$ 24972 $ 18,617

11. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, net, is comprised of the following (in thousands):

December 26, December 28,
2004 2003
(as restated)
Land ..ot st e e $ 83,399 $ 77,701
Buildings and leasehold improvements ......c.ccoovvieeenienrncenenenne 398,323 350,390
Furniture and equipment.........c..ooevreevernceciiiiencescree e 217,451 187,147
Construction in PrOZIESS .....cceevcevertrmrererresserenecracseesersessereeseesenne 24,601 10,858
723,774 626,096
Less accumulated depreciation and capitalized
lease amOTtIZAtION .....c.veeveereiecieeeeierreeeerreeee s resasesseessnessassansn 237,226 199,387
$ 486,548 $ 426,709

We have recorded capitalized leases of $4,055,000 at December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003 which
are included in buildings and leasehold improvements. We had accumulated amortization of such
property of $1,847,000 at December 26, 2004 and $1,607,000 at December 28, 2003. These capitalized
leases relate to the buildings on certain restaurant properties. The land portion of the restaurant property
leases is accounted for as an operating lease.

We had depreciation and capitalized lease amortization expense relating to property and equipment of
$46,051,000 for 2004, $41,082,000 for 2003 and $35,454,000 for 2002. Of these amounts, capitalized
lease amortization was $239,000 during each of 2004, 2003 and 2002.

We lease certain of our restaurants. The leases generally provide for payment of minimum annual rent,
real estate taxes, insurance and maintenance and, in some cases, contingent rent (calculated as a




percentage of sales) in excess of minimum rent. Total rental expense for all operating leases is comprised
of the following (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
MINIMUD TENE c.veveereeriineeeecceeeersreereerensessens $ 20,416 $ 17,274 $ 14,267
Contingent rent .......cccceveerrerreererceeressrereasense 1,254 1,297 1,115

$ 21,670 $ 18,571 $ 15,382

The present value of capitalized lease payments and the future minimum lease payments under
noncancelable operating leases over the lease term as defined in Note 2 (including leases executed for
sites to be developed in 2005) as of December 26, 2004 are as follows (in thousands):

Capitalized Operating
Leases Leases

2005 ettt ettt ettt st a e se $ 767 $ 24109
2006 ...ttt eae et et a s se e s eeanennen 927 23,774
2007 oo eeee s e s eee e s eessess e ee e es s eas e eereseeeeseseneeeen 822 23,233
2008 ...ttt et n e en et ean e e snae s 850 22,820
2009 ...ttt ettt st e ene b en e be e e 880 21,576
TRETEATIET......ccveeiceeeeeee ettt reretes et esssnesstassrsrasssssessssessarens 5,129 154,534
Total minimum lease payments .........c.cccceveeeereecmsenccnissisinsnnes 9,375 $ 270,046
Less amounts representing interest.........o.ecveverreeeercernerennrenecnnes 5,227

Present value of minimum lease payments.........cccoeercrccrecracnens $ 4,148

12. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt, including capitalized lease obligations, is comprised of the following (in thousands):

December 26, December 28,

2004 2003

Unsecured revolving credit facility; interest at LIBOR

plus 0.5% or prime rate at December 26, 2004,

due December 2009 and LIBOR plus 0.625% or prime

rate at December 28, 2003 .......oveeieueeeeiiieieeicreernreenrersernrennees $ 30,000 $ 15,000
Capitalized lease obligations (Note 11)....c.ccveeccevrnrcrnncsinninnans 4,148 4,208
OhET ..ttt ettt et b ae et ene st s arees s sae e 1,546 1,654
Total long-term debt...........coooeeeeireciieeeieerrcreeeer e renerenae 35,694 20,862
Less current portion of long-term debt ..........ccecevviviniininnnncne 222 192
Long-term debt — less current portion ...........ccceveevreeeecrenneneecenenes $ 35,472 $ 20,670

In December 2004, we completed the refinancing of our $150,000,000 unsecured revolving credit facility.
The new bank credit agreement provides for a $150,000,000 five-year unsecured revolving credit facility,
of which $40,000,000 may be used for the issuance of letters of credit. The facility is subject to various
covenants and restrictions which, among other things, require the maintenance of stipulated fixed charge,
leverage and indebtedness to capitalization ratios, as defined. There is no limit on cash dividends
provided that the declaration and payment of such dividend does not cause a default of any other covenant
contained in the agreement. The facility is subject to standard other terms, conditions, covenants, and
fees. As of December 26, 2004, we are in compliance with the covenants contained in our credit
agreement. As of December 26, 2004, we had borrowings of $30,000,000, standby letters of credit of
$12,000,000 outstanding and approximately $108,000,000 available under our revolving credit facility.
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Maturities of long-term debt, including capitalized lease obligations ending during the years indicated, are
as follows (in thousands):

20035 ettt et ae st s b s b et e s At e b s en e R e e R b b be e e s s esssnene s e nebrens $ 222
2006 .....eoeeieeeeeee ettt et ear s e e et et e s ae e e ease s eesaesesaeeare e te s nsenssnnennentensentes 266
2007 ettt ettt et e staeb e e s s st e renae b b e e e s e et e aeaenre s e beeranaenanranenes 265
2008 o eeeieeereerteecreenrerere e reresse s seses st s ser e b e s sassane e s e sRear b e s nssanebeebesen s e anesresesaenaeans 292
2009 ittt crereciers e taseesaesen s s te s ees e s r At s esa e s b abeeransas b ntnnear aeesannransessansnnrane 30,368
RETCATIET ... eveetie vttt e et cetr e s reesaneesses et sasseseeassasas e ne s sarassnsesnnaesensesrassmasas 4,281

$ 35,694

13. Loss and Loss Adjustment Reserve Related to Captive Insurance Subsidiary

In 2002, we formed Neighborhood Insurance, Inc., a Vermont corporation and a wholly-owned captive
insurance subsidiary to provide Applebee’s International, Inc. and qualified franchisees with workers’
compensation and general liability insurance. Applebee’s International, Inc. and covered franchisees
make premium payments to the captive insurance company which pays administrative fees and insurance
claims, subject to individual and aggregate maximum claim limits under the captive insurance company’s
reinsurance policies. Franchisee premium amounts billed by the captive insurance company are
established based upon third-party actuarial estimates of settlement costs for incurred claims and
administrative fees. The franchisee premiums are included in other franchise income ratably over the
policy year. The related offsetting expenses are included in cost of other franchise income. Accordingly,
we do not expect franchisee participation in the captive insurance company to have a material impact on
our net earnings. In 2005, we will have fewer franchisee participants in our captive insurance program as
we have reduced the number of insurance products offered by the captive insurance company. Our
consolidated balance sheets include the following balances related to the captive insurance subsidiary:

o Franchise premium receivables of approximately $1,900,000 and $450,000 as of December 26,
2004 and December 28, 2003, respectively, included in receivables related to captive insurance
subsidiary.

o Cash equivalent and other long-term investments restricted for the payment of claims of
approximately $16,700,000 and $10,000,000 as of December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003,
respectively, included in restricted assets related to captive insurance subsidiary.

e Loss reserve and unearned premiums related to captive insurance subsidiary of approximately
$19,600,000 and $11,000,000 as of December 26, 2004 and December 28, 2003, respectively.

e Other miscellaneous items, net, of approximately $1,000,000 and $550,000 as of December 26,
2004 and December 28, 2003, respectively, included in several line items in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Our activity in the loss and loss adjustment reserve, which includes Applebee’s International, Inc. and
participating franchisees, is summarized in the table below (in thousands):
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December 26, December 28,

2004 2003
Total balance, beginning of the year ..........cc.ccceeeecermrrvereeerennrene $ 11,007 $ 1,044
Incurred related to:
CUITENT YEAT ...ccevieeieenieerieeireesteeereresreessanesseeseaseesassessensessnsaensens 8,660 13,369
PriOT YA ...ttt sttt s s smenes 6,687 219
TOLAL eevieeeeerrereeeeieeiresererseesesresssesseeenesbeesssesnessaesssennesssaesnns 15,347 13,588
Paid related to:
CUITENL YEAT «.cveenvrinerrcrenrenrioreorseraercossatsansemesneestssroseeseessessosnrans 2,296 3,182
PriOT Year... oottt 5,257 443
TOtal PAIA....ceeuceeeerrrcierieeenereeseere et et e e eranrassesesnensaenens 7,553 3,625
Total balance, end of the year.......cocceccevccrerverincrccrnreerenseeccnennes 18,801 11,007
Less CUITENE POTHION ...ccovurvurrarreceeueemrensessieraasseremssassanssnensaseesssssenses 11,378 5,257
Long-term portion (NOte 15) ...ccccueereiericrieeeecceceeerreeeeeeeseennnnns $ 7423 $ 5750

Loss reserve estimates are established based upon third-party actuarial estimates of ultimate settlement
costs for incurred claims (which includes claims incurred but not reported) using data currently available.
The reserve estimates are regularly analyzed and adjusted when necessary. Unanticipated changes in the
data used to determine the reserve may require us to revise our estimates.

Deferred policy acquisition costs include premium taxes, fronting fees and net commissions and are deferred
and amortized over our fiscal year. Accordingly, we did not have any deferred policy acquisition costs
recorded as of December 26, 2004. As of December 26, 2004, we had $759,000 of acquisition expenses
payable that were included in the current portion of loss reserve and unearned premiums related to captive
insurance subsidiary in the consolidated balance sheet.

14. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities are comprised of the following (in thousands):

December 26, December 28,

2004 2003

(as restated)
Compensation and related taxes .......cccevviveeeereereerrerversssessrssessosens $ 34,061 $ 37,348
Gt CAPAS ...ooeviceetecieecrcceterttece et et e eae e aesres s s aesbesanenssessaesanenn 30,295 25,739
Sales and USE tAXES.....cccerierecreervrersseereesaneensseseeressersessessssessssseenns 5,942 5,528
INSUTANCE. ....coicereirieeenieenrnereeeerrrereeeesseessssaessnnsensesassassnesonaanessenses 5,210 7,277
REML. ..ottt ceeere e s e eeeereseesasasrsesnseeessssns snses 2,007 1,895
OHNET ...ttt e s snreestessatesaesssessmsastaessessnesnsensansrnses 11,549 14,153

$ 89,064 $ 91,940




15. Other Non-Current Liabilities

Other non-current liabilities are comprised of the following (in thousands):

December 26, December 28,
2004 2003
(as restated)
RENL......cet et ccrees st rersees e ssbseseensessasseesnaseessssnnsessessessnses 15,642 $ 13,792
Nonqualified deferred compensation plan

liabilities (NOTE 19) ...ccirrierreeinrireerrietee e e e s e e e sesenaes 9,754 5,872
Loss and loss adjustment reserve related to

captive insurance subsidiary ..........oceeerevircerceneerreenrerrereceenans 7,423 5,750

COMPENSALION ....ererirererreeirrereresiersernseeeeseressessessessassassesssnnes 5,013 4,813

101117 OO U O ROUU TRV SRR URUUUROU 3,707 3,960

41,539 $ 34,187

16. Income Taxes

We, along with our subsidiaries, file a consolidated federal income tax return. The income tax provision

consists of the following (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
(as restated) (as restated)
Current provision:
[0S o | DRSO $ 30,171 $ 45,526 $ 39,166
State and 10Cal ........cocceeereecerrieieceierere e, 2,146 5,106 4,647
Deferred provision:
Federal.......coviinnrreceeeeeeeri et 23,625 2,276 1,749
State and 10Cal .......veeevviiviveconiiereee e erensees 1,688 160 129
INCOME LAXES .....vcveecucniereeneareeenerenerasasssseseeaeseonserensennnes $ 57,630 $ 53,068 $ 45,691
The deferred income tax provision is comprised of the following (in thousands):
2004 2003 2002
(as restated) (as restated)
Depreciation and amortization............cceecueveveeerennnne $ 24,278 $ 5,595 $ 3,160
OHhET ...ttt cn et et a e 1,035 (3,159) (1,282)
Deferred income taX provision .........ccccccuveveercreersenen 25,313 2,436 1,878
Deferred income taxes related to change in
unrealized gain on iNVeStMEDtS .......cccoeeveeriirvncencas — — E))
Net change in deferred income taxes.............c..rvueees $ 25313 $ 2436 $ 1,869
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A reconciliation between the income tax provision and the expected tax determined by applying the
statutory federal income tax rates to earnings before income taxes follows (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
(as restated) (as restated)

Federal income tax at statutory rates ...........ceceeuevemene $ 58973 $ 51,597 $ 44,177
Increase (decrease) to income tax expense:

State and local income taxes, net of

federal benefit.......cooceververeeeeerrecreereereereneeererienes 3,083 3,479 3,149

Employment related tax credits, net...................... (3,894) (3.216) (2,871)

11 ¢T=7 OO SUSU R (532) 1,208 1,236
INCOME LAXES ..vvvirerresinseerireeerersrsrsseesseessssesssersasaesansens $ 57,630 $ 53,068 $ 45,691

The net current deferred income tax asset amounts are included in “prepaid and other current assets” and
the net non-current deferred income tax liability amounts are included in “other non-current liabilities” in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The significant components of deferred income tax assets
and liabilities and the related balance sheet classifications are as follows (in thousands):

December 26, December 28,
2004 2003
(as restated)

Classified as current:

ACCTUEA EXPENSES....ecneeviierrnereerseerresnsesseeneseraresscessssressencas $ 3,694 $ 4,497

Allowance for bad debts..........occourevreeereiecneeeeee e, 156 1,364

Other, Nt ..o a e 3,632 2,132

Net deferred InCOME tAX @SSEL vvvvueveereivevrrerererrveeereeesrensrens $ 7,482 $ 7,993
Classified as non-current:

Depreciation and amortization .........cc.ceceeveeeeeerereeeecnserens $ (35,481) $ (11,205)

Franchise deposits .......ccoveerreircrierinrirce et eesmcerestesesaneae 565 571

OFher, NEL....eeeeeceieeieeeerceeceteeeee s esrereessr e e e srareesanstessesssesesen 5,921 6,441

Net deferred income tax Hability ........ceeveevrrreernnererrereenens $ (28,995) $ (4,193)

In 2004, we implemented new tax planning strategies that accelerated depreciation on restaurant assets
which resulted in an increase in our deferred income tax liability.

17. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation, claims and disputes: We are involved in various legal actions which include, without
limitation, employment law related matters, dram shop claims, personal injury claims and other such
normal restaurant operational matters. In each instance, we believe that we have meritorious defenses to
the allegations made and we are vigorously defending these claims.

We believe that the ultimate disposition of these matters will not, individually or in the aggregate, have a
material adverse effect upon our business or consolidated financial position.

Lease guarantees: In connection with the sale of restaurants to franchisees and other parties, we have, in
certain cases, remained contingently liable for the remaining lease payments. As of December 26, 2004,
the aggregate amount of these lease payments totaled approximately $37,500,000. These leases expire at
various times throughout the next several years with the final lease agreement expiring in 2025. We have
not recorded a liability as of December 26, 2004 or December 28, 2003.
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Franchisee guarantees: In November 2003, we arranged for a third-party financing company to provide
up to $75,000,000 to qualified franchisees for short-term loans to fund remodel investments, subject to
our approval. Under the terms of this financing program, we will provide a limited guarantee pool for the
loans advanced during the three-year period ending December 2006. As of December 26, 2004, there
were loans outstanding to two franchisees aggregating approximately $900,000 under this program.

In May 2004, we arranged for a third-party financing company to provide up to $250,000,000 to qualified
franchisees for loans to fund development of new restaurants through October 2007, subject to our
approval. We will provide a limited guarantee of certain loans advanced under this program. As of
December 26, 2004, there were loans outstanding to two franchisees aggregating approximately
$13,600,000 under this program. The fair value of our guarantee under these two financing programs was
less than $100,000 and is recorded in other non-current liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet as of
December 26, 2004.

Severance agreements: We have severance and employment agreements with certain officers providing
for severance payments to be made in the event the associate resigns or is terminated related to a change
in control. The agreements define the circumstances which will constitute a change in control. If the
severance payments had been due as of December 26, 2004, we would have been required to make
payments totaling approximately $12,700,000. In addition, we have severance and employment
agreements with certain officers which contain severance provisions not related to a change in control.
Those provisions would have required aggregate payments of approximately $6,600,000 if such officers
had been terminated as of December 26, 2004. ‘

18. Stockholders’ Equity

On September 7, 1994, our Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan (the “Rights Plan) and
declared a dividend, issued on September 19, 1994, of one Right for each outstanding share of our
Common Stock (the “Common Shares”). The Rights expired on September 7, 2004 and were not
redeemed. :

Our Board of Directors authorized repurchases of our common stock of up to $75,000,000 and
$80,000,000 in 2002 and 2003, respectively. As of December 28, 2003, we had $99,800,000 remaining
on our authorizations. During 2004, we repurchased 3,993,670 shares of our common stock at an average
price of $24.97 for an aggregate cost of $99,700,000. As of December 26, 2004, we had completed all of
the 2002 and 2003 stock repurchase authorizations. In October 2004, our Board of Directors authorized
additional repurchases of up to $150,000,000 beginning in 2005 and approved a written plan for
repurchases of our common stock in the open market.
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A reconciliation of our treasury shares for the past three fiscal years is provided below (shares in
thousands):

Treasury
Shares
Balance as of December 30, 2001 .....ccccoceeeevevvmrenrenns 24,783
Purchases of treasury StocK...........cecererccrcceccrneesvennennas 1,815
Stock options exercised ........ccocvrereereercernrnnnserrinnenne. (763)
Shares issued under employee benefit plans............... (328)
Restricted shares awarded under equity incentive
PlANS .ot s (84
Balance as of December 29, 2002 .......ccoovveveeereeen. 25,423
Purchases of treasury stock..........c.covivrvirinricrineniinens 2,519
Stock options exercised........ocererrevcrvericrinieeniereeenne (1,847)
Shares issued under employee benefit plans............... (276)
Restricted shares awarded under equity incentive
PlANS .ottt e e e (103)
Balance as of December 28, 2003 .......cccoccevveniercenncn. 25,716
Purchases of treasury stock........cccccecceevennvccncicerennnen. 3,994
Stock options eXercised........covcecreniinnniinininninienns (1,982)
Shares issued under employee benefit plans............... 275)
Restricted shares awarded under equity incentive
PlADS cetiiiirneeceesren e s (78)
Balance as of December 26, 2004 ..........cccceevieenrenen 27,375

On May 13, 2004, we declared a three-for-two stock split, effected in the form of a 50% stock dividend,
to shareholders of record on May 28, 2004, payable on June 15, 2004. We issued approximately
36,200,000 shares of common stock as a result of the stock split. All references to the number of shares
and per share amounts of common stock have been restated to reflect the stock split. We have reclassified
an amount equal to the par value of the number of shares issued to common stock from retained earnings.

19. Employee Benefit Plans

Employee stock option plans: During 1989, our Board of Directors approved the 1989 Employee Stock
Option Plan (the “1989 Plan”) which provided for the grant of both qualified and nonqualified options as
determined by a committee appointed by the Board of Directors. At the 1995 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, the 1989 Employee Stock Option Plan was terminated, and the 1995 Equity Incentive Plan
(the “1995 Plan™) was approved. The termination of the 1989 Stock Option Plan did not affect existing
options which were outstanding when the plan was terminated.

Options under the 1989 Plan were granted for a term of three to ten years and were generally exercisable
one year from date of grant. The 1995 Plan allows the committee to grant stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, performance unit awards and performance share awards
(collectively, “Awards™) to eligible participants. The 1995 Plan authorizes the committee to issue up to
15,900,000 shares. Options granted under the 1995 Plan during 1995 have a term of five to ten years and
are generally exercisable three years from date of grant. Options granted under the 1995 Plan during
1996 through 1998 have a term of ten years and are generally 50% exercisable three years from date of
grant, 25% exercisable four years from date of grant, and 25% exercisable five years from date of grant.
Options granted under the 1995 Plan during 1999 through 2004 have a term of ten years and are generally
exercisable at either one, two, three or five years from the date of grant. Subject to the terms of the 1995
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Plan, the committee has the sole discretion to determine the associates to whom it grants Awards, the size
and types of the Awards, and the terms and conditions of the Awards.

During 1999, our Board of Directors approved the 1999 Employee Incentive Plan (the “1999 Plan™)
which allows the committee to grant nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock, performance units and performance shares to eligible participants. The 1999 Plan authorizes the
committee to issue up to 2,473,875 shares. Options granted under the 1999 Plan have a term of ten years
and are generally exercisable one, two or three years from the date of grant. Under all three plans, the
option price for both qualified and nonqualified options cannot be less than the fair market value of our
common stock on the date the committee grants the options. In 2003, we ceased granting options under
this plan.

All three plans permit the committee to grant performance shares. Performance shares represent rights to
receive our common stock, cash or any combination thereof, based upon certain performance criteria. In
2000, the committee approved performance share plans which have a one-year and a three-year
performance period. In 2002, the committee approved performance share plans with a three-year
performance period. We recorded compensation expense of $2,667,000 in 2003 and $865,000 in 2002
related to these grants. In 2004, we reversed $447,000 of compensation expense previously recognized
due to the 2004 fiscal year performance versus our three-year performance criteria. These amounts were
based on the market price of our common stock at the end of each fiscal year. Performance shares are no
longer used by the committee.

We account for all three plans in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25 which requires us to recognize
compensation cost based on the excess, if any, between the quoted market price of the stock at the date of
grant and the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock. Under this method, we have recognized
no compensation cost for stock option awards, except for performance shares as described above.
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Transactions relative to all three plans are as follows:

1999 Plan 1995 Plan 1989 Plan
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of  Exercise Numberof Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Options outstanding at

December 30, 2001 ............. 1,651,814 $§ 995 5,553,262 $ 885 112,049 $ 4.09
Granted.......cccvererencencene 815,812 $ 1527 1,357,140 $ 14.69 — -
Exercised......ccourrevrerenen (104,625) $ 859 (673,002) $ 8.01 (26,887) $ 4.09
Canceled......coeceeccennen. (218,023) $ 11.05 (650,128) $ 845 - —

Options outstanding at

December 29, 2002 ............. 2,144,978 $ 11.93 5,587,272 $10.41 85,162 $ 4.09
Granted......cccveeevevenvcrennee 134,250 $ 1625 1,446,765 $17.36 - -
Exercised........ccoveeennee. (306,151) $ 851 (1,507,872) $ 811  (78,900) $ 4.0
Canceled........occrvvvvvenn (197,980) $ 12.69 (39,117) $15.33 — -

Options outstahding at : \

December 28, 2003 ............. 1,775,097 $ 12.77 5,487,048 $12.84 6,262 $ 4.09
Granted.......ccvevvervenrennnes - - 1,596,944 $25.82 — —
Exercised......cccoveriemierinns (572,048) $ 10.46 (1,445,331) $10.09 (6,262) $ 4.09
Canceled.......ceeerreenene. (73,439) $ 14.81 (570,853) $14.91 — -

Options outstanding at
December 26, 2004 ............. 1,129,610 $ 13.80 5,067,808 $17.48 — -
Options available for grant at
December 26, 2004 ............. 317,097 2,598,584 —
The number of options exercisable for each plan are summarized below:
1999 Plan 1995 Plan 1989 Plan
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Options Exercise Options Exercise Options Exercise
Exercisable Price Exercisable Price Exercisable Price

December 29, 2002 ............. 97,875 $ 862 1,926,694 $ 841 85,162 5 4.09

December 28, 2003 ............. 146,829 $ 8.6 1,590,897 $ 9.36 6,262 $ 409

December 26, 2004 ............. 403,863 $ 1095 1,572,468 $10.70 - -
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The following table summarizes information relating to fixed-priced stock options outstanding for both
plans at December 26, 2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Range of Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise

Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price

1995 Plan:

$ 618 to $ 6.19 31,260 3.5 years $ 6.19 31,260 $ 6.19
$ 738 to $ 745 89,953 3.1 years $ 7.43 89,953 $ 743
$ 820 to $ 8.97 678,564 3.2 years $ 842 678,564 $ 8.42
$ 981 to $ 994 269,062 6.1 years $ 9.83 269,062 $ 9.83
$13.46 to $14.72 1,109,493 6.9 years $14.59 354,807 $14.36
$1560 to $16.35 1,008,956 8.0 years $16.25 136,912 $16.25
$1697 to $21.94 301,949 8.5 years $20.09 3,000 $18.59
$22.79 to $26.90 1,518,572 9.1 years $25.72 8,910 $25.79

$27.23 to $28.40 59,999 9.3 years $27.96 - -
$ 618 to $28.40 5,067,808 7.3 years $17.48 1,572,468 $10.70

1999 Plan:

$ 724 to $ 9.13 56,185 5.1 years $ 828 56,185 $ 8.28
$ 981 to $10.65 219,890 6.2 years $ 9.84 213,140 $ 9.85
$1277 to $17.60 853,535 7.3 years $15.18 134,538 $13.81
$ 724 to $17.60 1,129,610 7.0 years $13.80 403,863 $10.95

Restricted stock awards: During 2002, 2003 and 2004, the committee granted restricted stock awards to
certain officers and key associates. These awards vest over either a two-year or three-year period. We
recorded unearned compensation for the market value of the stock at the date of grant, and we showed
this as a reduction to stockholders’ equity in the accompanying consolidated baiance sheets. We are
amortizing unearned compensation ratably to expense over the vesting period. Accordingly, we
recognized compensation expense of $1,422,000, $1,011,000 and $659,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

Nonqualified deferred compensation plan: In 2002, we entered into a rabbi trust agreement to protect the
assets of the nonqualified deferred compensation plan for certain of our associates. Each participant’s
account is comprised of their contribution, our matching contribution and each participant’s share of
earnings or losses in the plan. In accordance with EITF No. 97-14, “Accounting for Deferred
Compensation Arrangements Where Amounts Are Held in a Rabbi Trust and Invested,” the accounts of
the rabbi trust are reported in our consolidated financial statements. As of December 26, 2004 and
December 28, 2003, our consolidated balance sheets include the investments in other assets and the
offsetting obligation is included in other non-current liabilities. The deferred compensation plan
investments are considered trading securities and are reported at fair value with the realized and
unrealized holding gains and losses related to these investments recorded in other income and the
offsetting compensation expense recorded in general and administrative expenses.

Employee retirement plans: During 1992, we established a profit sharing plan and trust in accordance
with Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. We make matching contributions of 50% of associate
contributions not to exceed 4.0% of an associate’s compensation in any year. We make our contributions
in shares of our common stock. Our contributions vest at the rate of 20% after the associate’s second year
of service, 60% after three years of service, 80% after four years of service and 100% after five years of
service. During 1994, we established a non-qualified defined contribution retirement plan for key
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associates. In 2002, we ceased contributions to this plan and a new nonqualified deferred compensation
plan was established (see nonqualified deferred compensation plan above). Our contributions under these
plans were $2,158,000 in 2004, $1,755,000 in 2003 and $1,697,000 in 2002.

Employee stock purchase plan: During 1996, we established an employee stock purchase plan in
accordance with Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan was approved at the 1997 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders. The plan allows associates to purchase shares of our common stock at a 15%
discount through payroll deductions. The Board has authorized 1,350,000 common shares under the plan.
Associates purchased 196,220 shares under this plan during 2004, 196,576 shares during 2003 and
176,898 shares during 2002.

20. Related Party Transactions

Prior to June 2002, we had a policy which allowed us to loan executives money to be used to invest in our
stock to meet guidelines which require executives to own certain amounts of our stock. This policy was
terminated in June of 2002 and no new loans will be granted. We had loans that were granted prior to the
termination of this policy outstanding for a total of $99,000 as of December 29, 2002 to two officers and
$615,000 as of December 30, 2001 to three officers. These loans had interest rates ranging from 4.7% to
6.8% and were collateralized by the stock. One loan was paid in 2002 and the remaining two loans were
paid in 2003 and are reflected as an increase in additional paid-in capital in our consolidated balance
sheets in each respective fiscal year.

As of December 28, 2003, we had a loan outstanding with an interest rate of 5% to an officer for moving

related assistance in the amount of $310,000. The remaining principal of $210,000, as well as accrued
interest, was paid in September 2004.
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21. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following presents the unaudited consolidated quarterly results of operations for 2004 and 2003.
During the second quarter of 2003, we fully impaired the principal and accrued interest of approximately
$8,800,000 for a note receivable. All quarters, except for the fiscal quarter ended December 26, 2004,
have been restated (see Note 22). All amounts, except per share amounts, are expressed in thousands.

Fiscal Quarter Ended
March 28, March 28, June 27, June 27, Sept 26, Sept 26, Dec 26,
2004 2004 2004 2004 2004 2004 2004
(as (as (as
(as previously (as previousty (as previously
restated) reported) restated) reported) restated) reported)
Revenues:
Corupany restaurant sales ................. $ 243560 § 243,560 $ 247,769 § 247,769 $ 247,173  § 247173 $ 238,296
Franchise royalties and fees.............. 30,715 30,772 30,722 30,779 30,048 30,105 29,736
Other franchise income..................... 3,115 3,115 3,399 3,399 3,913 3,913 3,188
Total operating revenues............ 277,390 277,447 281,890 281,947 281,134 281,191 271,220
Cost of company restaurant sales:
Food and beverage..........cc.cocooverurnene 63,515 63,515 66,647 66,647 65,115 65,115 63,857
LabOr ... 79,655 79,659 80,683 81,086 79,195 79,599 78,126
Direct and occupancy ..........co.eoeveeeee 59,342 59,069 60,513 60,240 61,914 61,642 62,938
Pre-opening eXpense............coeveuennen. 567 550 425 391 1,020 998 1,013
Total cost of company ‘
restaurant sales...........coceeeeennen, 203,079 202,793 208,268 208,364 207,244 207,354 205,934
Cost of other franchise income.................. 2,937 2937 5,035 5,035 3,521 3,521 2,908
General and administrative expenses.......... 25,422 25,517 24,960 24,932 26,752 26,669 27,676
Amortization of intangible assets .............. 86 86 158 158 199 199 220
Loss on disposition of restaurants and
CQUIPINENL......ootiiiuieereeierere e 495 495 584 584 441 441 435
Operating €amings ..........coooeerevceivenr. 45,371 45,619 42,885 42,874 42,977 43,007 34,047
Other income (expense):
Investment income ............ccccverenenne 223 223 18 18 325 325 718
Interest eXpense........cocoevvevierccennee. (344) (344) 416) (416) (379) 379 (487)
Other iNCOME......o.ovovevererreirereimrennnn, 461 (109) 562 951 754 568 1,780
Total other income...................... 340 (230) 164 553 700 514 2,011
Earnings before income taxes..................... 45,711 45,389 43,049 43,427 43,677 43,521 36,058
15,975 15,886 14,919 15,200 15,080 15,232 11,656

29,736  § 29,503 $ 28130 § 28227 $ 28597 § 28289 § 24,402

Basic net earnings per common share......... $ 036 § 0.36 $ 034 § 0.35 $ 035 % 0.35 3 0.30
Diluted net camings per commonshare ... ¢ 035 § 035 § 033 $ 034 $ 034 $ 034 $ 030

Basic weighted average shares

outstanding...........ceceenieinnrcennneceeen, 81,986 81,986 81,781 81,781 81,511 81,511 80,835
Diluted weighted average
shares outstanding ..........c...ccconeveceeurcunee 84,628 84,628 84,098 84,098 83,503 83,503 82,518
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Fiscal Quarter Ended

March 30, March 30, June 29, June 29, Sept 28, Sept 28, Dec 28, Dec 28,
2003 2003 2003 2003 2003 2003 2003 2003
(as (as (as (as
previously previously previously previously
(as restated) reported) (as restated) reported) (as restated) reported) (as restated) reported)
Revenues:
Company restaurant sales.................. $ 208410 $ 208410 $ 220,107  § 220,107 $ 2224290 § 222429 $ 216212  § 216212
Franchise royalties and fees............... 27,106 27,163 27,274 27,331 27,537 27,594 27,687 27,745
Other franchise income..........coc........ 2,641 2,641 3,268 3,268 2972 2972 4,266 4,266
Total operating revenues........ 238,157 238214 250,649 250,706 252938 252,995 248,165 248223
Cost of company restaurant sales:
Food and beverage............cccocccuruunnec. 54,846 54,846 57,040 57,040 57,200 57,200 56,260 56,260
Labor .....ccovvernrennee 68,336 68,364 72,257 71,804 72,931 73,018 70,238 70,559
Direct and occupancy. 50,793 50,561 54,560 54,386 56,033 55,869 56,007 55,861
Pre-opening expense...... P 234 221 364 334 590 576 832 819
Total cost of company
restaurant sales .............oeccccenne 174,209 173,992 184,221 183,564 186,754 186,663 183,337 183,499
Cost of other franchise income .................. 2,500 2,500 3,173 3,173 2,837 2,837 4,187 4,187
General and administrative expenses.......... 22,552 22,620 22,956 22,887 23,586 23,589 25,857 25917
Amortization of intangible assets............... 99 99 92 92 87 87 86 86
Loss on disposition of restaurants and
equipment ....... 467 467 731 731 116 116 615 615
Operating eamings.............ooecs-vcvioseerscie 38,330 38,536 39,476 40,259 39,558 39,703 35,313 35,149
Other income (expense):
Investment income............cccveemrerenees 336 336 485 485 227 227 506 506
Interest €XPense .......cccoverlovernccrnunenne (521) (521) (518) (518) (330 (330) (364) (364)
Impairment of Chevys note
receivable - - (8,803) (8,803) - - - -
Other income .........cccoen... 545 205 1,941 1 161 395 1,075 919
Total other income 360 20 (6,895) (8,835) 58 292 1217 1,061
Eamings before income taxes.................... 38,690 38,556 32,581 31,424 39,616 39,995 36,530 36,210
INCOME tAXES.........vvoeecrrerererrenrannreesecssneeins 14,001 13,954 11,655 11,239 14,261 14,398 13,151 13,036
Net €amings........c.coevvcinerinmniscnsennins $ 24680 § 24,602 $ 20926 $ 20185 $ 25355 % 25,597 $ 233719 § 23174
Basic net earnings per common share........ $ 030 $ 030 $ 025 $ 024 $ 030 $ 031 $ 028 3 028
Diluted net earnings per common share..... $ 029 $ 029 $ 024 $ 024 $ 030 $ o030 3§ 028 § 027
Basic weighted average shares
OUSEANAING .....ooveoreveireeearriseeverneneenee 82,907 82,907 83,153 83,153 83,334 83,334 82,380 82,380
Diluted weighted average
shares outstanding............o.cceorvverrveenenns 85,015 85,015 85,548 85,548 85,777 85,777 85,012 85,012
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22. Restatement of Financial Statements

Like many other companies in the restaurant, retail and other industries, we recently reviewed our
accounting treatment for leases and depreciation of related leasehold improvements. Following our
review, we determined to restate our consolidated financial statements for fiscal years 2003 and 2002.
Although we do not consider that these errors resulted in a material misstatement of our consolidated
financial statements for any previously reported annual period, the effect of correcting the errors with an
aggregate adjustment in the fourth quarter of 2004 would have had a material effect on our results of
operations for that quarter.

Historically, when accounting for leases with renewal options, we have recorded rent expense on a
straight-line basis over the initial non-cancelable lease term, with the term commencing when actual rent
payments began and depreciated leasehold improvements on those properties over a maximum period of
20 years which, in certain cases, included a portion of the renewal option periods. We have corrected our
lease term to include option periods where failure to recognize such options would result in an economic
penalty such that the renewal appears reasonably assured. The primary result of this correction is to
accelerate the recognition of rent expense under certain leases that include fixed-rent escalations. In
addition, the lease term will be deemed to commence on the date the company becomes legally obligated
for rent payments. Therefore, we have adopted a policy to capitalize the straight-line rent amounts during
the construction period of leased properties, resulting in an increase to previously reported property and
equipment in the consolidated balance sheets and an increase to depreciation expense in the consolidated
statements of earnings. Straight-line rent subsequent to the construction period and prior to the restaurant
opening is recognized as expense, resulting in an increase to previously reported pre-opening expenses in
the consolidated statements of earnings.

In connection with the restatement for lease accounting matters, we also corrected for previously
identified immaterial errors, primarily related to vacation and workers’ compensation expense.

The restatement adjustments increased net earnings by $791,000 for the fiscal year ended December 28,
2003 and decreased net earnings by $2,500,000 for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2002. The
cumulative effect of these error corrections is a reduction to retained eamings of $4,880,000 as of the
beginning of fiscal year 2002. The restatement did not have any impact on our previously reported net
cash flows, sales or comparable restaurant sales, or on our compliance with any covenant under our credit
facility.
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The following tables contain information regarding the
amounts, except per share amounts, are in thousands.

Conselidated Balance Sheet

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments, at market Valie ........ccoeeevivrreeeerceereeecceeenenene,
Receivables, net of allowance .........cccocvvvrvecennnnes
Receivables related to captive insurance subsidiary .....
INVENtOrIES....coveeeriieecerrcsece e s
Prepaid income taxes.........c.ooeeeeees
Prepaid and other current assets ...... .
Total current assets ......
Property and equipment, net...
Goodwill..........
Restricted assets related to captive insurance subsidiary .......ccceecvvveeevenverennn,
Other intangible assets, net
OLheET BSSELS, NEL.......cocceeeceeerereereeteesrereeeeeeeeseeesesssssesissessesersessessnsesensenssassen:

Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt .............ccococviecinninercecsenernrececeen:
Accounts payable ...
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities ...
Loss reserve and unearned premiums related to captive

INSUrance SUDSIAIAIY.......ccceererrrerrerreenrieeescaeerrereserensesnsserenesenseresenns
Accrued dividends.......
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt - less current portion
Deferred income taxes
Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred SEOCK . ccevvereecererereeee v ere i e st easeses e e s sesesassnasansantans
Common stock ....c.coceeeeenee
Additional paid-in capital...
Unearned compensation .....

Treasury stock
Total stockholders’ equity

M The following reclassifications are included in Restatement amounts above:

e Property and equipment, net 1,734
e Other assets, net (1,734)
. Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (10,271)
¢ Loss reserve and unearned premiums related

to captive insurance subsidiary (5,750)
¢ Other non-current liabitities 16,021
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impact of the restatement adjustments. All
2003

As previously Restatement 2003
reported amounts As restated
$ 17,867 $ — $ 17867
27 — 27
31,950 (229) 31,721
450 — 450
20,799 — 20,799
5,800 — 5,800
9,729 2,133 11,862
86,622 1,904 88.526
419,802 6,907 426,709
105,326 — 105,326
10,763 — 10,763
1,137 — 1,137
20,351 (1,734) 18,617
$ 644,001 $ 7.07m7 $ 651,078
$ 192 $ — $ 192
37,633 — 37,633
96,637 (4,697) 91,940
11,007 (5,750) 5,257
3,863 — 3,863
149,332 (10,447)_ 138,885
20,670 — 20,670
5,880 (1,687) 4,193
8,387 25,800 34,187
34,937 24,113 59,050
184,269 13,666 197,935
1,085 —_ 1,085
201,951 — 201,951
(1,377) — (1,377)
523,954 (6,589) 517,365
725,613 (6,589) 719,024
(265,881) — (265,881)
459,732 (6,589) 453,143
$ 644,001 s 7,077 $ 651,078




Consolidated Statement of Earnings

2003
As previously Restatermnent 2003
reported amounts As restated
Revenues:
Company restaurant Sales.............ccvrirerreerisseressessesessersesessessrassssesessnsens $ 867,158 $ — $ 867,158
Franchise royalties and fees ..............cecereenrvereeeernvnrererersesenessssseressssnacnen: 109,833 (229) 109,604
Other franchiSe INCOME .......oovevrirreeeiisessisesiniecetereseescsressssssnssesssessensane: 13,147 — 13,147
Total Operating reVENUE ..........cocceemereeveceercrcrcnccnennassenenns 990,138 (229) 989,909
Cost of company restaurant sales:
Food and beverage .........ccovveereevcvrreeseeersanienereeenssernnsnnens 225,346 — 225,346
Labor ettt e ne e e nares ettt et 283,745 17 283,762
Direct and OCCUPANCY ......cceevememceceercrerneereresvecismisernnene 216,677 716 217,393
Pre-opening expense ... 1,950 70 2,020
Total cost of company restaurant sales 727,718 803 728,521
Cost of other franchise inCOME ......cc.oeeeveeevererererernne 12,697 — 12,697
General and administrative eXpenses.........ocoeeeveenene 95,013 (62) 94,951
Amortization of intangible assets ...........ccorriinune 364 — 364
Loss on disposition of restaurants and equipment ..........cocccooveereeceeennnnenn, 699 — 699
Operating earnings eeetrereenerearr ettt et r st an st esasese s s e asaeatanas 153,647 (970) 152,677
Other income (expense):
INVESHNENE INCOMIE «....eeeeeeiereevevesiiiiisieeeraeer e e s reenseseerseseesestesesssesonnnns 1,554 — 1,554
INtErest EXPENSE ....cvvivureceeeerercrmrrn sttt reesasesrais s (1,733) — (1,733)
Impairment of Chevys note receivable.......ccoevrvceeeereeccecinenns (8,803) — (8,803)
Other INCOME....ecevevreeererereririerrererreesavesesessssersesnemsnssssnessssnnens 1,520 2,202 3,722
Total other income (EXPENSE)........cecvruruevercrecacrrnransrersas (7,462) 2,202 (5,260)
Earnings before inCome taxes.........coceverereereveveererereececnenencssnnins 146,185 1,232 147,417
Income taxes............oceeerrenenns 52,627 441 53,068
NEL CAIMUNES. c....vcveeereererererrereeseccsereiresssassesasasmesessesesssesssenens $ 93558 $ 791 $ 94,349
Basic net earnings per common share $ 1.13 $ 001 3 1.14
Diluted net earings per common shareV.................. $ 1.10 $ 001 $ 1.10
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 82,944 82,944 82,944
Diluted weighted shares outstanding .............. 85,409 85,409 85,409

) Diluted net earnings per common share do not add across due to rounding.
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Revenues:
Company restaurant sales

Franchise royalties and fees

Other franchise income

Total operating revenue

Cost of company restaurant sales:
Food and beverage
Labor
Direct and occupancy
Pre-opening expense

Total cost of company restaurant sales

Cost of other franchise income..........cccoceeemrrecnnrecencns

General and adminiStrative EXPENSES . ......couvivueeerccetsisisseeeeeemsissssccssensasas,

Amortization of intangible assets ..........cevevcevrcerncciriiirnneenenennne

Loss on disposition of restaurants and equipment ........ccc.cecvuereereeernnccnnennnns

OPerating CaIMINES......c..evvereerereruereessesenrssssesserssrasmssensassssmsmesessesassesssssasarsenss:

Other income (expense);

INVESHMENL INCOME ......eeierereri et sa e seesnanaenens
INLETESt EXPEIISE ceevviecerinieierceterer et et ca s s besseane
Oher INCOME.....cvreeianerceeirisraeeereeeisstsesesees e stsrerssnesssesssrabsesesreanasass

Total other income (expense).

Earnings before inCome taXes ........c.ocecveucecrmeerernencecnenmnrserereseseeseiesesaeseseneenens

INCOME LAXES ...uevirercririreecstirsisnsnee et sttt bbb en bbb

NEL BAMUNES.....ccoveririreriearecniercesssiriemearsnssssissaseamrsessisessssssrassasassssssssssenssrassasssn

Basic net earnings per common share........... reeeererer s
Diluted net earnings per common share.........

Basic weighted average shares outstanding ..........eeeeeeeverenresenconsscsesisnesesesann:
Diluted weighted shares outstanding ......
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2002
As previously Restatement 2002
reported amounts As restated
$ 724616 $ - $ 724,616
102,180 —_ 102,180
2,688 — 2,688
829,484 — 829,484
192,424 — 192,424
238,266 1,992 240,258
181,767 609 182,376
1,974 70 2,044
614,431 2,671 617,102
2,173 — 2,173
81,653 447 82,100
381 — 381
1,138 — 1,138
129,708 (3,118) 126,590
1,498 — 1,498
(2,168) — (2,168)
1,098 (800) 298
428 (800) 372)
130,136 (3,918) 126,218
47,109 (1,418) 45,691
$ 83,027 $ (2,500) $ 80,527
3 1.00 3 (0.03) $ 0.97
$ 0.97 $ (0.03) $ 0.94
83,407 83,407 83,407
85,382 85,382 85,382
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Headquarters
4551 West 107th Street
Overland Park, Kansas 66207
(913) 967-4000

Fax: {913) 341-1694

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Deloitte & Touche LLP

1010 Grand Boulevard, Suite 400

Kansas City, Missouri 64106

Financial Community Information

Inquiries from institutional investors, financial analysts,
registered representatives, portfolic managers and individual
shareholders should be directed ro: Investor Relations
Department at Applebee’s corporace headquarters, as

listed above, (913) 967-4000, Fax: {913) 341-4970.
Information may also be obtained by visiting our website

at www.applebees.com.

Registrar and Transfer Agent

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

Shareowner Services

161 North Concord Exchange

South St. Paul, Minnesota 55075-1139
Phone: (800) 468-9716

Annual Meeting

Shareholders are cordially invited to attend the 2005 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders which will be held at 10:00 a.m.,
CDT, on May 12, 20035, at the Overland Park Marriott Hotel,
10800 Metcalf Avenue, Overland Park, Kansas 66210.

Management urges all shareholders to vote their proxies and thus
participate in the decisions that will be made at this meeting.

CORPORATE PROFILE

Applebee’s International, Inc., headquartered in Overland Park,
Kansas, develops, franchises and operates casual dining restau-
rants in 49 states and 12 international countries under the
Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar brand.

Each Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar is designed as an
attractive, friendly, neighborhood establishment featuring
moderately priced, high-quality food and beverage items, table
service and a comfortable atmosphere that appeals to all ages.

Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar is the largest casual
dining concept in America, both in terms of number of
restaurants and market share. At December 26, 2004, there
were 1,671 Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar restaurants,
of which 1,247 were operated by franchisees and 424 were
operated by the company.

Dividends
The 2004 annual dividend was $0.06 per share, paid in
January 2005.

Shareholders
There were approximately 26,500 beneficial shareholders
including 1,351 shareholders of record as of December 26, 2004,

Trademarks

The following are registered trademarks of Applebee’s
International, Inc.: Applebee’s,® Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill
& Bar,® Applebee’s Neighborhood Grill & Bar and Design,®
and America’s Favorite Neighbor.®

Weight Watchers and POINTS are the registered trademarks
of Weight Watchers International, Inc.

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in this annual report are forward-
looking and based on current expectations. There are several
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those described, including but not limited to
the ability of the company and its franchisees to open and
operate additional restaurants profitably, the continued growth
of its franchisees and its ability to attract and retain qualified
franchisees, the impact of intense competition in the casual
dining segment of the restaurant industry and its ability to
control restaurant operating costs which are impacted by market
changes, minimum wage and other employment laws, food
costs and inflation. For additional discussion of the principal
factors that could cause actual results to be materially different,
the reader is referred to the company’s current report on

Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on February 9, 2005. The company disclaims any obligation to
update these forward-fooking statements.

COMMON STOCK INFORMATION

Our common stock trades on The Nasdaq Stock Market,®
under the symbol APPB. The table below sets forth for the fiscal
quarters indicated the reported high and low sale prices of our
common stock, as reported on The Nasdaq Stock Market.

2004 2003
High Low High Low
First Quarter $28.04 $23.80 $18.87 $15.39
Second Quarter $28.55 $23.30 $21.17 $17.83
Third Quarter $26.72  $22.50 $22.31  $19.83
Fourth Quarter $26.68 $22.26 $26.79  $20.53

All amounts have been adjusted to reflect a three-for-two stock
split effected as a 50 percent stock dividend, paid on June 15,
2004.







